
P������� C	

����	� 

A����  

M�� 14, 2020 

 

Commission Members 

David Culbertson 

Joe Foley 

David Jordan 

Bill Mansfield 

David McFadden 

Mark McKechnie 

E. J. McManus 

Jared Pulver 

Jeff Thomas 

The meeting may be viewed on Charter 

Channel 181, streamed on the City 

website www.cityofmedford.org or on 

RVTV at rvtv.sou.edu  

Regular Planning Commission 

meetings are held on the second and 

fourth Thursdays of every month 

Meetings begin at 5:30 PM 

Page 1



 

Meeting locations are generally accessible to persons with disabilities. To request interpreters for hearing impaired or other 

accommodations for persons with disabilities, please contact the ADA Coordinator at (541) 774-2074 or ada@cityofmedford.org at 

least three business days prior to the meeting to ensure availability. For TTY, dial 711 or (800) 735-1232. 

May 14, 2020                             

5:30 P.M.        

Zoom Virtual Meeting 
 

 

Virtual Meeting information 

Office of the Governor Executive Order No. 20-16 require that the governing body of a public body 

[as defined by ORS 192.610(3) and (4)] shall hold public meetings and hearings by telephone, video 

or through some other electronic or virtual means whenever possible. To attend virtually, tune 

into Charter Channel 181 or live stream at the City website www.cityofmedford.org or on RVTV at 

rvtv.sou.edu. 

 
10. Roll Call 

 

20. Consent Calendar / Written Communications (voice vote).  

20.1 LDS-20-046 Final Order of tentative plat approval for Buettner Place, a proposed 4-lot 

residential subdivision on a single 0.84-acre parcel located at 1375 Orchard Home Drive in the 

SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district (372W35AD 800); 

Applicant, Barbara Buettner; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs, 

dustin.severs.cityofmedford.org. 

 

20.2 LDS-20-050 / E-20-051 Final Orders of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an 

Exception pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in size, 

located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus of Ford Drive 

within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-

Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted 

Zoning) Administrative Mapping Overlay (371W081103); Applicant, Delta Waters Properties LLC; 

Agent, CSA Planning Ltd.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt, steffen.roennfeldt@cityofmedford.org. 

 
30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes from April 23, 2020 hearing. 

 
40. Oral Requests and Communications  

The Planning Commission is only accepting written comments and not verbal comments, with the 

exception of land use applicants, who will be given the opportunity to attend the meeting elec-

tronically. Public comments will be accepted via first class mail or email until noon on May 14, 

2020. Please email general comments to terri.richards@cityofmedford.org. Public hearing testi-

mony pertaining to the agenda items should be sent to the project planner’s email listed by each 

agenda item.  

 

50. Public Hearings 

Comments are limited to a total of 10 minutes for applicants and/or their representatives.  

 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

AGENDA 

Page 2



Planning Commission Agenda 
May 14, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 2 of 2  
 

 
Continuance Request 

50.1 PUD-20-032 / LDS-20-100 Consideration of a revised tentative plat and PUD Plan for the 

Springbrook Park Planned Unit Development in order to create nine additional lots at the 

southeast corner of the site.  The subject site is contained within an approximate 1.50 acres of a 

19.6-acre tract of land, and is located along Springbrook Road north of Owen Drive within the SFR-

6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) and MFR-15 (Multiple Family 

Residential, fifteen dwelling units per gross acre) zoning districts. Applicant, Springbrook Park, LLC. 

Agent, Steven Swartsley; Planner, Dustin Severs, dustin.severs.cityofmedford.org.  The applicant 

requests this item be continued to the Thursday, May 28, 2020 Planning Commission meeting.   

 

 Old Business 

50.2 LDS-20-025 Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phase 

4 & 5, a proposed 45-lot residential subdivision on two, contiguous parcels totaling 59.5 acres, 

which includes two tracts of land to be used for storm detention, and a reserve acreage portion. 

The property is located east of Cherry lane, north of Hillcrest Road, and is transected by Roxy Ann 

Road; and is within the SFR-2 (Single-Family Residential, two dwelling units per gross acre) and 

SFR-00 (Single-Family Residential, one dwelling unit per lot) zoning district, and with an RZ 

(Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping overlay (371W23DA1500 & 371W23101); Applicant, 

Michael Mahar; Agent, Neathamer Surveying, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs, 

dustin.severs.cityofmedford.org. 

 

New Business 

50.3 DCA-19-010 A legislative code amendment to modify the electric fence regulations found in 

Sections 9.560-9.561 and Sections 10.732 and 10.839(4) of the Municipal Code. Applicants, Greg 

Lemhouse and Michael Pate; Agent, City of Medford; Planner, Carla Paladino, 

carla.paladino@cityofmedford.org. 

 
 

60. Reports 

 60.1 Site Plan and Architectural Commission 

 60.2 Transportation Commission  

 60.3 Planning Department 

 

70. Messages and Papers from the Chair 

 

80. City Attorney Remarks 

 

90. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission 

  

100. Adjournment 

Page 3



 
BEFORE THE MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION 

STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF MEDFORD 

 

IN THE MATTER OF TENTATIVE PLAT APPROVAL OF   ) 

BUETTNER PLACE      [LDS-20-046] )     O R D E R  
 

ORDER granting approval of a request for tentative plat for Buettner Place, described as follows: 

 

A proposed 4-lot residential subdivision on a single 0.84-acre parcel located at 1375 Orchard Home 

Drive in the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district 

(372W35AD 800). 
  

WHEREAS: 
 

1. The Planning Commission has duly accepted the application filed in accordance with the Medford 

Land Development Code, Section 10.202; and 
 

2. The Medford Planning Commission has duly held a public hearing on the request for tentative plat 

for Buettner Place, as described above, with the public hearing a matter of record of the Planning 

Commission on April 23, 2020. 
   

3. At the public hearing on said tentative plat, evidence and recommendations were received and 

presented by the developer and Planning Department Staff; and 
 

4. At the conclusion of said hearing, after consideration and discussion, the Medford Planning 

Commission, upon a motion duly seconded granted tentative plat for Buettner Place, as described 

above and directed staff to prepare a final order with all conditions and findings set forth for the 

granting of the tentative plat approval. 
 

THEREFORE LET IT BE HEREBY ORDERED that the tentative plat for Buettner Place, stands approved 

per the Planning Commission Report dated April 23, 2020, and subject to compliance with all 

conditions contained therein. 
 

AND LET IT FURTHER BE OF RECORD, that the action of the Planning Commission in approving this 

request for tentative plat approval is hereafter supported by the findings referenced in the Planning 

Commission Report dated April 23, 2020. 
 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE, the Planning Commission determined that the tentative plat is in conformity 

with the provisions of law and Section 10.202(E) Land Division Criteria of the Land Development Code 

of the City of Medford. 
 

Accepted and approved this 14th day of May, 2020. 
 

      CITY OF MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

      ________________________________________________ 

      Planning Commission Chair 

    

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Planning Department Representative 

Page 4



 

 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT  
for a type-III quasi-judicial decision: Land Division  

Project Buettner Place 

 Applicant: Barbara Buettner 

 Agent: Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc. 

File no. LDS-20-046 

Date April 23, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of tentative plat approval for Buettner Place, a proposed 4-lot 

residential subdivision on a single 0.84-acre parcel located at 1375 Orchard Home 

Drive in the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) zoning 

district (372W35AD 800). 

Vicinity Map 

  

 

 

 

Page 5



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 2 of 8 

 

Subject Site Characteristics 

Zoning: SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) 

GLUP: UR (Urban Residential) 

Overlay(s): None 

Use(s): Single-family residence 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North  Zone: SFR-00 (Single family residential, one dwelling per lot) 

 Use(s): single-family residential  

South  Zone: SFR-00  

 Use(s): single-family residential  

East Zone: SFR-6  

 Use(s): single-family residential 

West Zone: SFR-6  

 Use(s): single-family residential 

Related Projects  

PA-19-071 Pre-application to discuss subject proposal 

ZC-97-043 Zone change to SFR-6 

Applicable Criteria  

MLDC 10.202(E): Land Division Criteria 

The approving authority (Planning Commission) shall not approve any tentative plat 

unless it first finds that, the proposed land division together with the provisions for 

its design and improvement: 

(1) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specific plans 

thereto, including Neighborhood Circulation Plans, and all applicable design 

standards set forth in Article IV and V; 

(2) Will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the same 

ownership, if any, or of adjoining land or of access thereto, in accordance with this 

chapter; 

(3)  Bears a name that has been approved by the approving authority and does not 

use a word which is the same as, similar to, or pronounced the same as a word in 

the name of any other subdivision in the City of Medford; except for the words 

"town", "city", "place", "court", "addition", or similar words; unless the land platted 

is contiguous to and platted by the same applicant that platted the land division 

Page 6



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 3 of 8 

 

bearing that name; or unless the applicant files and records the consent of the 

party who platted the land division bearing that name and the block numbers 

continue those of the plat of the same name last filed; 

(4)  If it includes the creation of streets or alleys, that such streets or alleys are laid out 

to be consistent with existing and planned streets and alleys and with the plats of 

land divisions already approved for adjoining property unless the approving 

authority determines it is in the public interest to modify the street pattern; 

(5)  If it has streets or alleys that are proposed to be held for private use, that they are 

distinguished from the public streets or alleys on the tentative plat, and 

reservations or restrictions relating to the private streets or alleys are set forth; 

(6)  Will not cause an unmitigated land use conflict between the land division and 

adjoining agricultural lands within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning district. 

Issues and Analysis 

Project Summary 

Current site  

The subject site consists of a single 0.84-acre parcel, containing a single-family home 

with a detached garage, and small shed located to the northeast of the lot.  The parcel 

is a corner lot, with Arlington Drive, a Minor Residential street, fronting the parcel 

along its northerly boundary, 

and Orchard Home Drive, a 

Standard Residential street, 

fronting its westerly 

boundary.  Abutting the 

property along its southerly 

boundary is a strip of public 

right-of-way containing an 

irrigation ditch. 

Vehicular access to the 

existing residence is 

provided by a driveway off of 

Orchard Home Drive.  All 

street section improvements 

have been completed on 

both streets with the 

exception of sidewalk and 

planter strip. 

 

Page 7



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 4 of 8 

 

Proposal 

The applicant is proposing to subdivide the property, creating a 4-lot residential 

subdivision—Buettner Place Subdivision.  The existing single-family house and two 

detached structures (located on Lots 2 and 3) are proposed to remain with the future 

development of the site.  

Both Arlington Drive and Orchard Home Drive are currently improved with pavement, 

curb and gutter; however, neither contains a sidewalk or planter strip. With the 

approval of the subdivision, the applicant will be required to construct a sidewalk with 

a planter strip along both street frontages.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 5 of 8 

 

Density 

Density Table 

SFR-6 

Minimum /Maximum 

Density 
Allowed Shown 

4.0 to 6.0 dwelling units per 

gross acre 
4 min. – 6 max. 4 lots 

 

As shown on the Density Table above, based on 1.064 gross acres of land, the creation 

of four lots, as identified on the submitted tentative plat, falls within the 

minimum/maximum range permitted for the SFR-6 zoning district, as per MLDC 

10.713.  

Development Standards 

Detached Single Family Dwellings 

Site Development Table (MLDC 10.710) 

SFR-6 Lot Area 

Minimum 

Lot Width 

(Interior) 

Minimum  

Lot Width 

(Corner) 

Minimum 

Lot Depth 

Minimum  

Lot Frontage 

Required 
4,500 to 

12,500  
50 feet 60 feet 90 feet 30 feet 

Shown 

Lot 1: 5,872 

Lot 2: 5,887 

Lot 3: 14,598 

Lot 4: 8,515 

 

Lot 1: NA 

Lot 2: 70 

Lot 3: 92.8 

Lot 4: 50 

 

Lot 1: 63 

Lot 2: NA 

Lot 3: NA 

Lot 4: NA 

 

Lot 1: 96.1 

Lot 2: 90 

Lot 3: 170.2 

Lot 4: 171.8 

 

Lot 1: 63 

Lot 2: 70 

Lot 3: 92.8 

Lot 4: 50 

 

 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the four proposed 

lots, as identified on the submitted plat—with the exception of lot 3—meet all the 

dimensional standards for lots in the SFR-6 zoning district, as per MLDC 10.710. 

Lot 3, proposed to include the existing house and detached accessory structure, 

exceeds the maximum lot area allowed in the SFR-6 zoning district.  Pursuant to MLDC 

10.702(3)(a), however, the creation of a new residential lot may exceed the maximum 

lot area when there is an existing residence.  

Page 9



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 6 of 8 

 

Block Length 

The block surrounding the subject parcel 

exceeds the maximum block perimeter length 

as outlined in MLDC 10.426(1). The Planning 

Commission may approve block length and/or 

perimeter lengths that exceed the maximum 

required, contingent on the applicant’s  findings 

effectively demonstrating that certain 

constraints exist which make street connections 

impractical or inappropriate.  

The applicant’s findings state the following:  

 The subject property is constrained by 

existing development on the east and 

additional streets would not comply with 

the intersection spacing standards of the 

Code. 

 

Staff concurs with the applicant’s findings, as the 

construction of a public street and/or a public 

accessway—pursuant to MLDC 10.426(1) and 10.464—is impractical due to the 

abutting existing development in the surrounding area, and, pursuant to MLDC 

10.426(2)(f), future development on adjoining property can feasibly satisfy block 

length.    

 

Existing structures 

The existing single-family house and detached garage (located on proposed Lot 2) will 

remain with the subject development. The submitted plat also identifies an existing 

structure (shed) on Lot 3; however, per MLDC 10.012, an accessory structure is only 

permitted when located on the same lot as the principal structure.  

As a condition of approval, the structure identified on Lot 2 will be required to be 

removed prior to final plat approval. 

Facility Adequacy 

Per the agency comments submitted to staff (Exhibits E-H), it can be found that, with 

the imposition of the conditions of approval contained in Exhibit A, there are 

adequate facilities to serve the future development of the site. 

 

 

Page 10



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 7 of 8 

 

Other Agency Comments 

Rogue Valley Sewer Services (Exhibit H) 

The subject property is within RVSS service area.  There is an existing 10-inch sewer 

along Orchard Home Drive and a 4-inch lateral serving the existing property.  

In their submitted report, RVSS requires that the applicant must obtain required tap 

permits from RVSS and pay related fees, and the applicant must pay sewer system 

development charges to RVSS prior to issuance of building permits. 

As a condition of approval, the applicant will be required to comply with the applicable 

conditions of RVSS. 

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from a committee, such as BPAC.  

DECISION 

At the hearing held on April 23, 2020, the Commission voted unanimously to approve 

the request, while revising condition #6, a condition requiring that the applicant 

remove the existing structure (shed) identified on Lot 2.  The revised condition states 

that the subject structure shall not be used until a building permit for the construction 

of a dwelling unit for Lot 2 has been issued.   

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Tentative Plat 

Staff finds the subdivision plat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and all 

applicable design standards set forth in Articles IV and V.  Furthermore, the 

subdivision will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the 

same ownership or of adjoining land; bears a name (Buettner Place), which has been 

reviewed and approved by the City’s Address Technician; the plat does not include 

the creation of a public street; and criteria 5 and 6 are inapplicable. 

ACTION TAKEN 

Adopted the findings as recommended by staff and directed staff to prepare a Final 

Order for approval of LDS-20-046 per the Planning Commission report dated April 23, 

2020, including:  

• Exhibits A through I.  

Page 11



Buettner Place  Planning Commission Report 

File no.LDS-20-046  April 23, 2020 

Page 8 of 8 

 

• Granting of relief from creating a public street connection and/or public 

accessway in order to satisfy block length requirments.  

EXHIBITS 

A-1 Conditions of Approval (revised), drafted April 23, 2020. 

B Tentative Plat, received February 18, 2020. 

C Conceptual Grading & Drainage Plan, received February 18, 2020. 

D Applicant’s Findings of Fact & Conclusions of Law, received February 18, 2020. 

E Public Works Staff Report, received April 1, 2020. 

F Medford Water Commission memo & associated map, received April 1, 2020. 

G Medford Fire Department Report, received April 1, 2020 

H RVSS report, received March 19, 2020. 

I Jackson County Roads report, received April 13, 2020. 

Vicinity map  

MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION  
 
 
____________________________________  
Mark McKechnie, Chair 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA:  APRIL 23, 2020 
 MAY 14, 2020 
 

Page 12



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

 

Buettner Place 

LDS-20-046 

Conditions of Approval 

April 23, 2020 

 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the approval of the final plat, the applicant shall: 

1. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Public Works Department 

(Exhibit E) 

2. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit F). 

3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit G). 

4. Comply with all applicable requirements of Rogue Valley Sewer Services (Exhibit H). 

5. Comply with all applicable requirements of Jackson County Road (Exhibit I). 

Prior to the issuance of a building permit for the construction of a dwelling unit on Lot 2: 

6. The existing accessory structure (shed) shall not be used.  

Page 13



Buettner Place Subdivision
1375 Orchard Home Drive

2/24/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

Pauline Pl

Ca
rls

on
 D

r

Cl
ea

rs
pr

ing
s D

r

Applegate Ln

Layla Dr

Homeview Dr

Arlington Dr

Or
ch

ar
d H

om
e D

r

L ozie r Ln

Stewart Ave

4

3

2

1

LDS-20-046
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 320160 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s372W35AD TL 800

Page 14



 
BEFORE THE MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION 

STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF MEDFORD 

 

IN THE MATTER OF TENTATIVE PLAT APPROVAL OF DELTA WATERS PROPERTIES ) 

SUBDIVISION       [LDS-20-050] )     O R D E R  
 

ORDER granting approval of a request for tentative plat for Delta Waters Properties Subdivision, 

described as follows: 

 

A six-lot subdivision and an Exception pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of 

land, 22.38 acres in size, located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern 

terminus of Ford Drive within the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre) 

and SFR-10 (Single-Family Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district, and with 

an RZ (Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping Overlay (371W081103). 
  

WHEREAS: 
 

1. The Planning Commission has duly accepted the application filed in accordance with the Medford 

Land Development Code, Section 10.202; and 
 

2. The Medford Planning Commission has duly held a public hearing on the request for tentative plat 

for Delta Waters Properties Subdivision, as described above, with the public hearing a matter of record 

of the Planning Commission on April 23, 2020. 
   

3. At the public hearing on said tentative plat, evidence and recommendations were received and 

presented by the developer and Planning Department Staff; and 
 

4. At the conclusion of said hearing, after consideration and discussion, the Medford Planning 

Commission, upon a motion duly seconded granted tentative plat for Delta Waters Properties 

Subdivision, as described above and directed staff to prepare a final order with all conditions and 

findings set forth for the granting of the tentative plat approval. 
 

THEREFORE LET IT BE HEREBY ORDERED that the tentative plat for Delta Waters Properties 

Subdivision, stands approved per the Planning Commission Staff Report dated April 16, 2020, and 

subject to compliance with all conditions contained therein. 
 

AND LET IT FURTHER BE OF RECORD, that the action of the Planning Commission in approving this 

request for tentative plat approval is hereafter supported by the findings referenced in the Planning 

Commission Staff Report dated April 16, 2020. 
 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE, the Planning Commission determined that the tentative plat is in conformity 

with the provisions of law and Section 10.202(E) Land Division Criteria of the Land Development Code 

of the City of Medford. 
 

Accepted and approved this 14th day of May, 2020. 
 

      CITY OF MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

      ________________________________________________ 

      Planning Commission Chair 

    

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Planning Department Representative 

Page 15



 
 

            

BEFORE THE MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

    STATE OF OREGON, CITY OF MEDFORD 

 

IN THE MATTER OF APPROVAL OF AN EXCEPTION FOR    ) 

DELTA WATERS PROPERTIES SUBDIVISION   [E-20-051] )        O R D E R  

  

ORDER granting approval for a request of an exception for Delta Waters Properties Subdivision, as 

described below: 
 

An Exception pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in size, 

located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus of Ford Drive within 

the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-Family 

Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted Zoning) 

Administrative Mapping Overlay (371W081103). 
 

WHEREAS: 

1. The Planning Commission has duly accepted the application filed in accordance with the Medford 

Land Development Code, Sections 10.186(B); and 
 

2. The Medford Planning Commission has duly held a public hearing on the exception for Delta Waters 

Properties Subdivision, as described above, with the public hearing a matter of record of the Planning 

Commission on April 23, 2020. 
 

3. At the public hearing on said exception, evidence and recommendations were received and presented 

by the developer and Planning Department Staff; and 
 

4. At the conclusion of said hearing, after consideration and discussion, the Medford Planning 

Commission, upon a motion duly seconded granted exception approval and directed staff to prepare a 

final order with all conditions and findings set forth for the granting of the exception approval. 
 

THEREFORE LET IT BE HEREBY ORDERED that the exception for Delta Waters Properties Subdivision, as 

described above, stands approved per the Planning Commission Staff Report dated April 16, 2020, and 

subject to compliance with all conditions contained therein. 
 

AND LET IT FURTHER BE OF RECORD, that the action of the Planning Commission in approving this request 

for exception approval is hereafter supported by the findings referenced in the Planning Commission Staff 

Report dated April 16, 2020. 
 

BASED UPON THE ABOVE, the Planning Commission determined that the exception is in conformity with 

the provisions of law and Section 10.186(B) criteria for an exception of the Land Development Code of the 

City of Medford. 
 

Accepted and approved this 14th day of May, 2020. 

 

      CITY OF MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION 

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      Planning Commission Chair 

                                             

ATTEST: 

 

_______________________________ 

Planning Department Representative                                         

Page 16



   
  
   

 

 

 

April 23, 2020      

5:30 P.M.        

Virtual Meeting 

 

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order at 5:30 PM as a virtual meeting 

in Medford, Oregon on the above date with the following members and staff in attendance:  

Commissioners Present Staff Present 

Mark McKechnie, Chair 

Joe Foley, Vice Chair 

David Culbertson 

David Jordan 

Bill Mansfield 

David McFadden 

E.J. McManus 

Jared Pulver 

Jeff Thomas 

Matt Brinkley, Planning Director 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Carla Paladino, Principal Planner 

Eric Mitton, Deputy City Attorney 

Alex Georgevitch, City Engineer 

Greg Kleinberg, Fire Marshal 

Terri Richards, Recording Secretary 

Dustin Severs, Planner III 

Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III 

Sarah Sousa, Planner IV 

 

 

10.     Roll Call 

 

20.    Consent Calendar / Written Communications  

20.1 CUP-18-148 Consideration of request for a one-year time extension of the approval of a 

Conditional Use Permit to allow storm water facilities within the Riparian Corridor of Lone Pine 

Creek, located approximately 300 feet from the intersection of Delta Waters Road and Crater Lake 

Highway (HWY 62) 1884-1862 Delta Waters Road (371W18AA TL 1200-1400). Applicant: Delta Waters 

Lenders; Agent; Bill Philp; Planner: Liz Conner. 

 

Commissioner Foley requested a short presentation on this agenda item. 

 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director reported that the applicant is requesting a one-year time 

extension on the Conditional Use Permit. He is planning to start work this summer.  

 

Motion: The Planning Commission adopted the consent calendar as submitted.             

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley  Seconded by: Commissioner McManus 

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 9-0-0. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION  

MINUTES 

Page 17



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 2 of 15  
 

 30. Approval or Correction of the Minutes from March 12, 2020 hearing 

 30.1 The minutes for March 12, 2020, were approved as submitted. 

 

40. Oral Requests and Communications from the Public.  None. 

 

Eric Mitton, Deputy City Attorney read the Quasi-Judicial statement. 

                    

 50. Public Hearings.  

 

Continuance Request 

50.1 PUD-20-032 / LDS-20-100 Consideration of a revised tentative plat and PUD Plan for the 

Springbrook Park Planned Unit Development in order to create nine additional lots at the southeast 

corner of the site.  The subject site is contained within an approximate 1.50 acres of a 19.6-acre tract 

of land, and is located along Springbrook Road north of Owen Drive within the SFR-6 (Single-Family 

Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) and MFR-15 (Multiple Family Residential, fifteen 

dwelling units per gross acre) zoning districts. Applicant, Springbrook Park, LLC. Agent, Steven 

Swartsley; Planner, Dustin Severs.  The applicant requests this item be continued to the Thursday, 

May 14, 2020, Planning Commission meeting. 

 

Chair McKechnie stated that if there are members in the audience that have joined to testify on this 

agenda item and cannot attend the May 14th hearing, please raise your hand and when your 

microphone is unmuted the Planning Commission will hear your testimony at this time.  Please keep 

in mind that it is possible that your questions may be answered when staff presents their staff 

report on May 14th.  There will be no decisions made this evening on this agenda item. 

 

Motion: The Planning Commission continued PUD-20-032 and LDS-20-100, per the applicant’s 

request to the Thursday, May 14, 2020 Planning Commission meeting.             

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley  Seconded by: Commissioner Mansfield 

 

Commissioner Culbertson will be abstaining from the vote.  He previously financially represented 

Mr. Swartsley in purchase and sale of the property listed.   

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 8-0-1, with Commissioner Culbertson abstaining. 

 

50.2 LDS-20-025 Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phase 

4 & 5, a proposed 45-lot residential subdivision on two, contiguous parcels totaling 59.5 acres, which 

includes two tracts of land to be used for storm detention, and a reserve acreage portion. The 

property is located east of Cherry lane, north of Hillcrest Road, and is transected by Roxy Ann Road; 

and is within the SFR-2 (Single-Family Residential, two dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-00 

(Single-Family Residential, one dwelling unit per lot) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted 

Page 18



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 3 of 15  
 

Zoning) Administrative Mapping overlay (371W23DA1500 & 371W23101); Applicant, Michael Mahar; 

Agent, Neathamer Surveying, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs.  The applicant has requested to continue 

this time to the Thursday, May 14, 2020 Planning Commission meeting. 

 

Chair McKechnie stated that if there are members in the audience that have joined to testify on this 

agenda item and cannot attend the May 14th hearing, please raise your hand and when your 

microphone is unmuted the Planning Commission will hear your testimony at this time.  Please keep 

in mind that it is possible that your questions may be answered when staff presents their staff 

report on May 14th.  There will be no decisions made this evening on this agenda item. 

 

Motion: The Planning Commission continued LDS-20-025, per the applicant’s request to the 

Thursday, May 14, 2020 Planning Commission meeting.             

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley  Seconded by: Commissioner Mansfield 

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 9-0-0. 

 

Old Business 

50.3 LDP-20-016 / ZC-20-017 Consideration of a request for tentative plat approval of a three lot 

land partition of a single parcel totaling 0.53 acres, including a request for a change of zone from 

SFR-4 (Single Family Residential, four dwelling units per gross acre) to SFR-6 (Single Family 

Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre). The property is located at 2939 Bailey Avenue 

approximately 300 feet south of Delta Waters Road in the SFR-4 Zoning district (371W16BB TL 

15800); Applicant, Richard Krebs; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Liz Conner. 

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex-parte 

communication they would like to disclose. Chair McKechnie disclosed that Scott Sinner is his 

neighbor but that would not influence his decision on this application. 

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether anyone in attendance wishes to question the Commission as to 

conflicts of interest or ex-parte contacts. None were disclosed. 

 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director reported that two new exhibits were sent to the Commission 

today that will be entered into the record. Exhibit R is a letter from Fair Housing Council of Oregon 

and Housing Land Advocates and Exhibit S is the Planning Department response memorandum.   

The Land Division approval criteria can be found in the Medford Land Development Code Section 

10.202(E).  The Zone Change approval criteria can be found in the Medford Land Development Code 

Section 10.204(B).  The applicable criteria were addressed in the staff report and included in the 

property owner notices. Ms. Evans gave a staff report and addressed the letter from the Fair 

Housing Council of Oregon.  It expresses concern regarding the lack of Goal 10 findings in the staff 

report and that the Commission should defer adoption of the proposed amendment until Goal 10 

Page 19



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 4 of 15  
 

findings have been clarified.  Staff does not agree that findings of compliance with the Statewide 

Planning Goals are required at the time of zone change.  Rather, a finding of compliance with the 

Comprehensive Plan is the standard. 

 

Chair McKechnie asked, if the lot was left as an SFR-4 could the applicant put two dwelling units plus 

two ADU’s? Ms. Evans responded that is correct, although ADU’s do not count in density per the 

statute.   

 

The public hearing was opened. 

 

a. Scott Sinner, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc., 4401 San Juan Drive, Suite G, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  

Mr. Sinner reported that this is an infill development.  It is the last remaining parcel to be 

development on Bailey Avenue.  The 15 foot dedication right-of-way is a legacy street and the 

applicant is requesting the curb tight sidewalk that would match the rest of Bailey Avenue.   

 

Mr. Sinner reserved rebuttal time. 

 

b. Lee Gamber, 2956 Bailey Avenue, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  Mr. Gamber asked, was Mr. Sinner 

going to address the unstable land on the north section of the property from the old irrigation ditch?  

The consensus of the neighbors is to split the property into two parcels not three.   They are 

concerned of the street traffic and property values. 

 

Mr. Sinner reported that the change from SFR-4 to SFR-6 is still a low density single family detached 

development.  He is confident it will be a nice development.   

 

Vice Chair Foley requested that Mr. Sinner address the stability issue that Mr. Gamber raised.   Mr. 

Sinner responded that it is not a criteria for the zone change or the land division.  He is not aware 

of any problems.  It will be addressed in the construction and building permitting process.  

 

The public hearing was closed 

 

Motion:  The Planning Commission adopts the findings as recommended by staff and adopts the 

final orders for approval of LDP-20-016 and ZC-20-017 per the Planning Commission report dated 

April 23, 2020, including Exhibits A through S.  

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley   Seconded by: Commissioner McFadden 

 

The public hearing was reopened. 

 

Page 20



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 5 of 15  
 

c. Susan Van Hoose, 2972 Bailey Avenue, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  Ms. Van Hoose agrees with Mr. 

Gamber regarding the neighbors.  A lot of them may not know how to get on Zoom.  She also thinks 

three houses on the subject property will be too tight.  There will be a lot more traffic.  

 

Commissioner McFadden commented that often staff follows up with a letter regarding a testimony 

and their issues.  He does not know if that should be expounded on.  The application being proposed 

is allowed.  

 

Alex Georgevitch, City Engineer reported that a single family dwelling generates approximately ten 

trips per day.  During peak hours it is one additional vehicle.  This is insignificant on this street.  They 

do not see high levels of traffic so there are no concerns from the City’s Traffic Department.     

 

Mr. Sinner thinks this project will be complimentary to the neighborhood. 

 

The public hearing was closed. 

 

Chair McKechnie is opposed to the arbitrary spot zoning.  He thinks this is bad planning and will 

vote no.   

 

Commissioner Pulver asked, is Chair McKechnie going to cite a criterion for his no vote?  Chair 

McKecknie responded it is incompatible with the neighborhood and sets a bad precedent.   

 

Commissioner Pulver commented that Chair McKechnie mentioned previous criteria that spoke to 

consistency with neighboring lots.  Is that true or no longer applies?  Ms. Evans reported that last 

year the approval criteria were changed to remove the locational standard for SFR-6 zones.  She 

pointed out that the size of these lots at 7,000 square feet is larger than the minimum for the SFR-

4 zone.  There is not a compatibility criterion.       

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 8-1-0, with Chair McKechnie voting no. 

 

50.4 UP-19-003 Consideration of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to adopt an Urbanization Plan 

into the Neighborhood Element for approximately 29.72 acres of property located at the northwest 

corner of South Stage Road and Kings Highway (Planning Unit MD-7c) (382W01AD1000 and 

382W01D100); Applicants, KDA Homes LLC, Lazaro Ayala and Mark Knox; Agent, Scott Sinner, Scott 

Sinner Consulting Inc.; Planner, Carla Angeli Paladino, Principal Planner. 

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex-parte 

communication they would like to disclose. Commissioner Pulver’s business does real estate work 

occasionally for Mr. Ayala but he has no specific ties to this property and feels his independence 

can be maintained.  Chair McKechnie’s business does a lot of work for Mr. Ayala and Scott Sinner is 

his neighbor.  He has no stakes in this project and will abstain from the vote.  Commissioner Jordan 

Page 21



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 6 of 15  
 

and Mark Knox serve on another non-profit board together. He does not think it conflicts him to 

make a decision on this application.   

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether anyone in attendance wishes to question the Commission as to 

conflicts of interest or ex-parte contacts. None were disclosed. 

 

Carla Paladino, Principal Planner reported that the Comprehensive Plan Amendment approval 

criteria can be found in the Medford Land Development Code Sections 10.102-10.122, 10.214, and 

10.220.  The applicable criteria were addressed in the staff report and included in the property 

owner notices. Ms. Paladino gave a staff report and reported that Exhibit P was a new exhibit sent 

to the Planning Commission last week that will be submitted into the record.  Also, a letter was 

received from Ed Snyder regarding access will be submitted into the record as Exhibit Q. 

 

Commissioner McFadden asked, did Ms. Paladino state earlier that there is a decrease in density 

being requested?  He is surprised that South Stage Road is considered a minor collector street.  He 

has discomfort with the intersection at Lillian and South Stage Road.  Ms. Paladino reported that 

the overall density requirement for the City is 6.6 dwelling units per acre.  The calculation estimated 

86 dwelling units needed to meet the urban growth boundary requirements.  The applicant will be 

requesting SFR-10.  That will be increasing the number of units on the property to 106 which is the 

minimum for that zone.  South Stage and Kings Highway are both minor arterial streets.  Jackson 

County Roads was not in favor of the Lillian Street connection to South Stage.  However, they have 

indicated that if it does get extended in the future they would likely ask for a right-in right-out only.      

 

Commissioner Pulver asked, when does the issues with the parks, open spaces, trails and bike paths 

connectivity get finalized?  Ms. Paladino responded that the application and land is required to 

provide the open space that will be adopted into the Comprehensive Plan. The trails and bike paths 

will be part of the Off-road Network.   

 

Commissioner Pulver asked, will the issue of access in Exhibit Q be resolved at time of subdivision?  

Ms. Paladino replied yes. 

 

Commissioner Culbertson stated that in one of the study sessions when they talked about these 

applications coming before the Planning Commission one of the concerns was to make sure there 

were not major deviations.  The previous application that was submitted is not here so there is no 

reference of whether or not it is a deviation.  He remembers seeing a master plan that was very 

detailed.  There is a reduction in commercial land that was previously allocated.  Ms. Paladino 

reported that MD-7B and MD-7C each have their own neighborhood plans that were submitted with 

the urban growth boundary.  The City Council did not adopt or require any specific elections or 

whatever was noted in those plans to be carried forward as they did in other areas.   

 

Page 22



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 7 of 15  
 

Vice Chair Foley asked, is staff recommending that the Planning Commission not move the 

circulation plan forward? He feels it may add clarity to the surrounding properties.  Ms. Paladino 

stated that staff did not want to necessarily have this in the Comprehensive Plan and at a later date 

shift lines.  Staff could caveat the plan as conceptual and add language that details in the 

development code will need to be met at time of subdivision.             

 

The public hearing was opened. 

 

a. Scott Sinner, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc., 4401 San Juan Drive, Suite G, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  

Mr. Sinner reported that the applicant would like to do a minor GLUP amendment within the 

property boundary to facility development on the commercial and low density.  Exhibit B-1 is the 

applicant’s preferred circulation plan.  Further development will be a zone change and subdivision.   

 

Regarding Mr. Snyder’s letter on the southwest corner of the property, two properties on the west 

uses a private road and access off South Stage Road.  The private road is an easement for the first 

250 feet.  When the applicant develops the commercial area they will develop the half street 

improvement on that private road that will eventually become a public road. 

 

The applicant has on-going discussions with the Parks Department of providing a three plus acre 

Public Park.  The three acres is consistent with the Leisure Services Plan.  Jackson County Roads 

does not want any more streets coming onto South Stage Road.  It was the applicant’s intent to 

bring Lillian through.  Discussions with Public Works and the County that indicated upon annexation 

of this property the roadways would be brought into City jurisdiction and standards.  The applicant’s 

proposed Lillian location is approximately 700 feet from Kings Highway intersection that will be 

adequate for travel.  It will be reviewed further at time of land division.  

 

The urban residential will probably consist of single family detached and single family attached 

(townhouses).  There are no plans at this time for the commercial area.   

 

Commissioner McFadden asked, was there any discussion of using the commercial area, within this 

development, as a buffer by the use of a park space from the busy streets around it and extend the 

commercial along Kings Highway and South Stage Road, concentrating residential to the northwest?  

Mr. Sinner responded that they have had extensive discussions along those lines but it did not go 

anywhere.  It was determined that an opportunity for open space in this arrangement would be a 

good fit.  

 

Vice Chair Foley asked, what implications will the commercial property extending into the adjacent 

land have in the future?  Mr. Sinner reported that Kings Highway is a minor arterial and when fully 

developed it will provide a substantial buffer. 

 

Mr. Sinner reserved rebuttal time. 

Page 23



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 8 of 15  
 

 b. Marta Schulenburg, 721 South Stage Road, Medford, Oregon, 97501.  Ms. Schulenburg has 

requested in writing and verbally consideration of the residents on South Stage Road about 

commercial across the street from them.  Her suggestion with help from one of the developers for 

wording was that there would be no commercial closer than 1,000 feet from the center line of the 

right-of-way on South Stage Road to the existing homes.  She is upset that commercial is still be 

considered in front of her. 

 

Vice Chair Foley suggestion Ms. Schulenburg make her concerns known to the City Council since 

they will be making the final decision on this application. 

 

c. Jay Harland, CSA Planning, Ltd., 4497 Brownridge Terrace, Suite 101, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  Mr. 

Harland requested that the conceptual circulation plan not be put in the Comprehensive Plan.  It is 

valuable to look at. There are different uses that could affect the street layout.  He would prefer this 

be a reference document through this kind of adoption process but not adopted. 

 

Commissioner Culbertson commented that he found the original conceptual plan.  It identified 13.8 

acres of commercial, 7.5 acres residential and 3.5 acres of open space.  The commercial has been 

decreased and increased the residential. 

 

Commissioner McFadden stated that in other areas the commercial area is slow to develop and get 

dramatically reduced in size.  He does not know how the percentage process figures into that.  Ms. 

Paladino responded that the Regional Plan designates the open space percentage for each of the 

planning units.  It does not give the acreage.  There are specific acreages allocated for residential 

and commercial / industrial as part of the urban growth boundary process. Specific open space in 

each of the planning units was not adopted. 

 

Chair McKechnie asked, is there a rule for the amount of commercial land area versus residential?  

Ms. Paladino does not believe there was a ratio.  She would have to review the Regional Plan to see 

how the distribution worked.   

 

Mr. Sinner stated that he recalls Ms. Schulenburg’s letter.  He does not see how there could be a 

1,000 foot buffer between her house, the commercial development, planning unit or the proposal.  

He hopes because of the topography in that area will help with some of her concern.    

 

The public hearing was closed. 

 

Motion:  The Planning Commission, based on the findings and conclusions that all of the applicable 

criteria are satisfied or not applicable, forwards a favorable recommendation to the City Council per 

the staff report dated April 16, 2020, including Exhibits A through Q for approval of UP-19-003. 

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley   Seconded by: Commissioner Mansfield 

Page 24



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 9 of 15  
 

Commissioner Mansfield asked, does the motion include or exclude adopting Exhibit B-1 into the 

Neighborhood Element of the Comprehensive Plan?  Vice Chair Foley stated that his motion 

excluded adopting Exhibit B-1 into the Neighborhood Element of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

Ms. Paladino clarified that Exhibit B-1 is staff’s recommendation of adopting into the Neighborhood 

Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  Staff would like direction on whether the Planning 

Commission wants to add the circulation plan or not.   

 

Amended motion: The Planning Commission, based on the findings and conclusions that all of the 

applicable criteria are satisfied or not applicable, forwards a favorable recommendation to the City 

Council per the staff report dated April 16, 2020, including Exhibits A through Q for approval of UP-

19-003, and adopting Exhibit B-1 into the Neighborhood Element of the Comprehensive Plan.  

Excluding the circulation plan. 

 

Commissioner McFadden commented that he thought Mr. Harland made a great recommendation 

on dropping plans that show streets.  However, he is not sure if he would like to see more or less 

detail.  He was hoping for something different. 

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 6-2-1, with Commissioner Culbertson, Commissioner McFadden 

voting no and Chair McKechnie abstaining. 

 

New Business 

50.5 LDS-20-046 Consideration of tentative plat approval for Buettner Place, a proposed 4-lot 

residential subdivision on a single 0.84-acre parcel located at 1375 Orchard Home Drive in the SFR-

6 (Single-Family Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district (372W35AD 800); 

Applicant, Barbara Buettner; Agent, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc.; Planner, Dustin Severs. 

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex-parte 

communication they would like to disclose. Chair McKechnie disclosed that Mr. Sinner is his 

neighborhood but would not affect his decision on this matter. 

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether anyone in attendance wishes to question the Commission as to 

conflicts of interest or ex-parte contacts. None were disclosed. 

 

Dustin Severs, Planner III reported that staff received two new exhibits this week that were emailed 

to the Planning Commission and will be submitted into the record.  Exhibit J is a letter from the 

applicant’s surveyor concerning the strip of land along the subject parcel’s southern boundary that 

is not a public right-of-way.  It is part of the property south of the subject site.  Exhibit K is an email 

received from the applicant’s agent, Scott Sinner, requesting that condition #6, regarding the 

removal of the site’s accessory structure, be removed as a condition of approval.  The Land Division 

approval criteria can be found in the Medford Land Development Code Section 10.202(E).  The 

Page 25



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 10 of 15  
 

applicable criteria were addressed in the staff report and included in the property owner notices. 

Mr. Severs gave a staff report. 

 

Mr. Mitton reported that an accessory building needs to be subordinate to a principal structure or 

a principal use.  An alternative option is to impose a condition that the building cannot be used until 

a residence is built on that lot.     

 

The public hearing was opened. 

 

a. Scott Sinner, Scott Sinner Consulting, Inc., 4401 San Juan Drive, Suite G, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  

Mr. Sinner reported that this is a shed.  The applicant has over $3,000 in the slab under the shed.  It 

does add value.  It is an accessory structure for the primary use and the primary use is single family 

residential.  The applicant is going to develop a structure on this parcel and the shed would be a 

nice asset.   

 

Chair McKechnie asked, did Mr. Sinner hear the language that Mr. Mitton cited?  Mr. Sinner replied 

the applicant would be happy with Mr. Mitton’s option. 

 

Mr. Sinner reserved rebuttal time. 

 

The public hearing was closed 

 

Motion:  The Planning Commission adopts the findings as recommended by staff and directs staff 

to prepare the final order for approval of LDS-20-046 per the Planning Commission report dated 

April 23, 2020, including Exhibits A through K, granting relief from creating a public street connection 

and/or public access way in order to satisfy block length requirements and modifying condition #6 

to leave the accessory structure that cannot be used until a residence is built on that lot. 

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley   Seconded by: Commissioner McFadden 

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 9-0-0. 

 

50.6 LDS-20-050 / E-20-051 Consideration of tentative plat approval for a six-lot subdivision and an 

Exception pertaining to minimum lot frontage standards on one parcel of land, 22.38 acres in size, 

located at the northern terminus of McLoughlin Drive and the eastern terminus of Ford Drive within 

the SFR-6 (Single-Family Residential, 4 to 6 dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-10 (Single-Family 

Residential, 6 to 10 dwelling units per gross acre) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted Zoning) 

Administrative Mapping Overlay (371W081103); Applicant, Delta Waters Properties LLC; Agent, CSA 

Planning Ltd.; Planner, Steffen Roennfeldt. 

 

Page 26



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 11 of 15  
 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex-parte 

communication they would like to disclose. None were disclosed. 

 

Chair McKechnie inquired whether anyone in attendance wishes to question the Commission as to 

conflicts of interest or ex-parte contacts. None were disclosed. 

 

Steffen Roennfeldt, Planner III reported that the Land Division approval criteria can be found in the 

Medford Land Development Code Section 10.202(E).  The Exception approval criteria can be found 

in the Medford Land Development Code Section 10.186(B).  The applicable criteria were addressed 

in the staff report and included in the property owner notices. Mr. Severs gave a staff report. 

 

Commissioner McFadden asked, is it correct that if a cell tower was developed in a subdivision there 

are certain distance requirements?  Mr. Roennfeldt responded that is correct.  Commissioner 

McFadden stated In this case it is reversing that situation.  Is it safe to assume that the distances 

have been met by the creation of lot 6?  Mr. Roennfeldt that is correct.  

 

The public hearing was opened. 

 

a. Jay Harland, CSA Planning Ltd., 4497 Brownridge Terrace, Suite 101, Medford, Oregon, 97504.  Mr. 

Harland reported that this action is about creating lots that can secure financing for individual 

developments between the seller and developer. 

 

Mr. Harland requests that the Exception be approved because with the reservation of right-of-way 

it could extend streets to McLoughlin Drive and get city street access.  

 

Mr. Mitton questioned the additional setbacks required for new wireless communication facilities 

are not applicable because they are for new towers to existing houses.  With a new tower next to 

an existing house it would be 84 feet but the findings read there is a 61.8 foot setback to the south, 

15.2 feet to the west and 39.8 feet to the north and east.  Is he reading that wrong?  Mr. Harland 

replied no, Mr. Mitton is reading that correctly.  He may have misunderstood Commissioner 

McFadden’s question.  Those are the setbacks to the property line. 

 

Mr. Georgevitch asked, with the exception stipulation for improvements on Lot 6 fall on any portion 

of Lot 5 because it is a 5 acre parcel and could be phased?  That intersection will be critical allowing 

development to move through the intersection as well as developed to the east since expansion of 

the urban growth boundary.  What is the stipulation envisioning?  Mr. Harland would be comfortable 

with language of vertical construction or any further division of Lot 5.  The owner of Lot 5 knows it 

is their responsibility to build a street around it.  They do not have an issue with it.  It will be recorded 

before closing.  The City will review it before recording. 

 

Mr. Harland reserved rebuttal time. 

Page 27



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 12 of 15  
 

The public hearing was closed 

 

Motion:  The Planning Commission adopts the findings as recommended by staff and directs staff 

to prepare the final orders for approval of LDS-20-050 and E-20-051 per the staff report dated April 

16, 2020, including Exhibits A through X, and adoption of the applicant’s stipulations as stated in the 

submitted Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (Exhibit O). 

 

Moved by: Vice Chair Foley   Seconded by: Commissioner Jordan 

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 9-0-0. 

 

50.7 DCA-18-112 An amendment to Chapter 10 of the Medford Municipal Code to add standards 

for shared use paths.  Applicant, City of Medford; Planner, Sarah Sousa. 

 

Sarah Sousa, Planner IV reported that the Land Development Code Amendment approval criteria 

can be found in the Medford Land Development Code Section 10.218.  The applicable criteria were 

addressed in the staff report. Ms. Sousa gave a staff report. 

 

Commissioner McFadden is curious about the fiber optics cable near the path along Siskiyou Park.  

Is there language in this amendment allowing similar installations along other sections of the path?  

Ms. Sousa responded that it is not written in the current draft but language could be added if the 

Commission thinks it is needed.  If the Parks Department does not have an issue Ms. Sousa does 

not see why they could not add installation of utilities language to the draft amendment. 

 

Ms. Evan stated that the City has franchise agreements with different entities that provide services 

through the City.  Placing facilities like that in a public right-of-way will be part of that agreement. 

 

Commissioner McKechnie added that unless it specifically prohibits it, it would allow it by omission.       

 

The public hearing was opened and there being no testimony the public hearing was closed. 

 

Vice Chair Foley lost connection. 

 

Motion:  The Planning Commission, based on the findings and conclusions that all of the applicable 

criteria are satisfied or not applicable, forwards a favorable recommendation for approval of DCA-

18-112 to the City Council per the staff report dated April 16, 2020, including Exhibit A. 

 

Moved by: Commissioner Culbertson   Seconded by: Commissioner McFadden 

 

Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 7-1-0, with Chair McKechnie voting no. 

 

Page 28



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 13 of 15  
 

60.      Reports 

60.1 Site Plan and Architectural Commission.  

Commissioner Culbertson reported that the Site Plan and Architectural Commission met on Friday, 

April 3, 2020 and Friday, April 17, 2020.  On April 3rd they had two applications.  They approved a 

gas station and convenience store located at the South Medford Center on Center Drive.  The 

second application was a 3,000 square foot office building within the existing foundation footprint 

located at 629 Franquette Street at the intersection of Franquette Street and Earhart Street.  That 

item was continued to the April 17, 2020, meeting and then continued again to the May 15, 2020, 

meeting.  On Friday, April 17, 2020, they approved a 3,500 square foot restaurant and 12 multiple 

family dwelling units located at 2217 & 2301 E Barnett Road, including an Exception request to the 

parking standards for multiple family residential dwellings. They also approved a 33,600 square foot 

metal commercial storage and office facility located at 1170 Knutson Avenue and a 7,500 square 

foot single story warehouse located at 1525 N Central Avenue. 

 

Rick Whitlock stepped down from the Site Plan and Architectural Commission because he is now 

the City Attorney.   

 

60.2 Transportation Commission.  

Commissioner Pulver reported that the Transportation Commission has not met because they have 

been deemed non-essential, He mentioned that Ms. Evans may want to speak to that.  

 

60.3 Planning Department 

Ms. Evans reported that the only bodies that have been meeting are the Site Plan and Architectural 

Commission, Landmarks and Historic Preservation Commission, Planning Commission and City 

Council. 

 

Ms. Evans welcomed back Mr. Mitton to the Planning Commission.  She is delighted to have Mr. 

Whitlock as the City Attorney. 

 

There is a Planning Commission virtual study session scheduled for Monday, April 27, 2020.  

Discussion will be on the electric fence code amendment. 

 

There is business scheduled for Thursday, May 14, 2020, Thursday, May 28, 2020, Thursday, June 

11, 2020, and Thursday, June 25, 2020.  The meeting on May 14, 2020 will be virtual.   

 

On Thursday, May 7, 2020, the City Council will discuss the urbanization plan and annexation on 

South Stage Road that the Planning Commission heard this evening, the Consolidated Plan for 2020-

2024 Action Plan, and the General Fund Grant Program award recommendations from the Housing 

Commission.  May is National Historic Preservation month.  Staff will ask the Mayor to proclaim it 

as such. 

 

Page 29



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 14 of 15  
 

Vice Chair Foley was reconnected into the meeting. 

 

Ms. Evans asked the Commissioner’s to stay online for a few minutes in order to get a picture of all 

the Commissioners.         

 

70.      Messages and Papers from the Chair.   

70.1 Chair McKechnie stated the Commission survived the Corona Virus and their first virtual 

meeting so they can survive anything. 

 

80.      City Attorney Remarks.   

80.1 Mr. Mitton reiterated that Mr. Whitlock is now the City Attorney.  They are excited to have him 

on board.  Mr. Whitlock will now be sitting on the City Council which puts Mr. Mitton back on the 

Planning Commission.  He is pumped to be back. 

  

90.      Propositions and Remarks from the Commission.  None. 

90.1 Commissioner Pulver noted to staff that the issue of density comes up a lot.  He thinks the 

mandate from the State on a blanket level is not appropriate.  He thinks every city should make its 

own determination as to what they want to be and what they want to look like in terms of density.  

It should not be mandated from Salem, Portland or anywhere else.  He is particularly concerned 

that the City’s density requirement jumps into the seven units per acre in 2030. It warrants 

discussion.   

 

Urbanization plans may be a good discussion for a study session since they saw the first one this 

evening.  Commissioner Culbertson had good comments that need to be revisited in general about 

what was discussed by property owners, developers, etc. when their various pitches were made to 

be included in the urban growth boundary expansion. What they promised back then versus what 

they bring forward now.  

 

Also to be revisited is the issue of allocation of lands between residential, employment, industrial, 

and open space.  It would be a good refresher course with more urbanization plans coming forward 

in the upcoming months. 

 

Chair McKechnie agrees.    

  

100.    Adjournment 

101.  The meeting was adjourned at approximately 8:25 p.m.  The proceedings of this meeting were 

digitally recorded and are filed in the City Recorder’s office. 

 

 

 

 

Page 30



Planning Commission Minutes 

April 23, 2020 

 

 
 

Page 15 of 15  
 

Submitted by: 

 

        

_____________________________________  _______________________________________ 

Terri L. Richards     Mark McKechnie 

Recording Secretary    Planning Commission Chair 

 

 

Approved: May 14, 2020 

Page 31



  

 

STAFF REPORT – CONTINUANCE REQUEST 
for a Type-III quasi-judicial decision: PUD & Land Division 

Project Springbrook Park PUD  

 Applicant: Springbrook Park LLC.  

 Agent: Steven Swartsley 

File no. PUD-20-032 / LDS-20-100 

To Planning Commission                for 5/14/2020 hearing 

From Dustin Severs, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date May 7, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal 

 

Consideration of a revised tentative plat and PUD Plan for the Springbrook Park Planned Unit 

Development in order to create nine additional lots at the southeast corner of the site.  The 

subject site is contained within an approximate 1.50 acres of a 19.6-acre tract of land, and is 

located along Springbrook Road north of Owen Drive within the SFR-6 (Single-Family 

Residential, six dwelling units per gross acre) and MFR-15 (Multiple Family Residential, fifteen 

dwelling units per gross acre) zoning districts.  

Vicinity Map 

 

Page 32



Springbrook Park PUD  Continuance Report 

File no.PUD-20-032 / LDS-20-100  May 7, 2020 

 

Request 

The applicant has requested that the item be continued to May 28, 2020. 

EXHIBITS  

A Continuance Request, received May 5, 2020. 

Vicinity Map 

 

COMMISSION AGENDA:        APRIL 23, 2020 

May 14, 2020  

                    
 

Page 33



1

Terri L. Richards

From: swartsley@charter.net

Sent: Tuesday, May 5, 2020 8:21 AM

To: Dustin J. Severs; 'Tom Becker'

Subject: Continue

 

 

Dustin; please take this as a formal request to continue the hearing before the planning commission for Phase 6 of 

Springbrook Park from May 14, 2020 to May 28, 2020. This request is necessitated because of some issues that arose on 

May 4, 2020 and which will take a week to resolve. Thank you, Steve Swartsley 

Page 34



Kinsbury at
 Springbrook Park

3/11/2020

Project Name:

Ki
ng

sb
ur

y
Dr

Monarch Ln

Bronte Cir

Dragon Tail Pl

Sharman Way

Arr
ow

he
ad

D r

Nellie Ettinger Ln

Pearl Eye Ln

Ma
lla

rd
 Ln

Springbrook Rd

Owen Dr

4

3

2

1

PUD-20-032
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 320160 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s

Page 35



 

 

 
STAFF REPORT  
for a type-III quasi-judicial decision: Land Division  

Project Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5 

 Applicant: Michael Mahar; Agent: Neathamer Surveying, Inc. 

File no. LDS-20-025 

To Planning Commission                for 5/14/2020 hearing 

From Dustin Severs, Planner III 

Reviewer Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 

Date May 7, 2020 

BACKGROUND 

Proposal  

Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 

& 5, a proposed 45-lot residential subdivision on two contiguous parcels totaling 59.5 

acres, which includes two tracts of land to be used for storm detention, and a reserve 

acreage portion. The property is located east of Cherry Lane, north of Hillcrest Road, 

and is transected by Roxy Ann Road; and is within the SFR-2 (Single-Family Residential, 

two dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-00 (Single-Family Residential, one dwelling 

unit per existing lot) zoning districts, and with the RZ (Restricted Zoning) 

Administrative Mapping overlay (371W23DA1500 & 371W23101). 

Vicinity Map 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 2 of 11 
 

Subject Site Characteristics 

Zoning: SFR-2 & SFR-00 

GLUP: UR (Urban Residential) 

Overlay(s):  RZ (Restricted Zoning) 

Use(s): Vacant 

Surrounding Site Characteristics 

North   Zone: SFR-2 

  Use(s): single-family residential  

South   Zone: SFR-6  

  Use(s): Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 2 & 3 

East  Zone: SFR-4  

  Use(s): single-family residential 

West  Zone: Jackson County Rural Residential  

  Use(s): single-family residential 

Related Projects  

ZC-00-159 Zone Change 

LDS-02-032  Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 1-3 

LDS-08-035 Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5 (expired in 2013) 

Applicable Criteria  

MLDC 10.202(E): Land Division Criteria 

The approving authority (Planning Commission) shall not approve any tentative plat 

unless it first finds that, the proposed land division together with the provisions for 

its design and improvement: 

(1) Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, any other applicable specific plans 

thereto, including Neighborhood Circulation Plans, and all applicable design 

standards set forth in Article IV and V; 

(2) Will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the same 

ownership, if any, or of adjoining land or of access thereto, in accordance with this 

chapter; 

(3) Bears a name that has been approved by the approving authority and does not 

use a word which is the same as, similar to, or pronounced the same as a word in 

the name of any other subdivision in the City of Medford; except for the words 

"town", "city", "place", "court", "addition", or similar words; unless the land platted 

Page 37



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 3 of 11 
 

is contiguous to and platted by the same applicant that platted the land division 

bearing that name; or unless the applicant files and records the consent of the 

party who platted the land division bearing that name and the block numbers 

continue those of the plat of the same name last filed; 

(4) If it includes the creation of streets or alleys, that such streets or alleys are laid out 

to be consistent with existing and planned streets and alleys and with the plats of 

land divisions already approved for adjoining property unless the approving 

authority determines it is in the public interest to modify the street pattern; 

(5) If it has streets or alleys that are proposed to be held for private use, that they are 

distinguished from the public streets or alleys on the tentative plat, and 

reservations or restrictions relating to the private streets or alleys are set forth; 

(6) Will not cause an unmitigated land use conflict between the land division and 

adjoining agricultural lands within the EFU (Exclusive Farm Use) zoning district. 

Issues and Analysis 

Project Summary 

Current Site  

The subject site consists of two 

vacant contiguous parcels totaling 

59.5 acres.  Tax lot 101 totals 56 acres 

and is transected by the unimproved 

right-of-way of Roxy Ann Road. The 

zoning on this property is split with 

SFR-2 occupying the southerly half of 

the parcel, and SFR-00 occupying the 

northerly half.  TL 1500, located at the 

southeasterly corner of the site, 

totals 3.45 acres, and is zoned SFR-2.   

The subject site is contiguous to 

Phases 1 through 3 of the Saddle 

Ridge Subdivision, approved in 2002 

for 128 lots.  The majority of the lots 

in Phases 1 through 3 have been built 

out. 

A tentative plat for the subject 

request was previously approved in 

2008, but expired in 2013.  

Page 38



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 4 of 11 
 

The site contains significant slopes, with over 60% of the land containing slopes 

exceeding 15%.  A Hillside Slope Analysis has been included with this application. 

Proposal 

The applicant is now proposing the extension of the Saddle Ridge Subdivision with 

Phases 4 & 5, consisting of 45 lots planned for single-family homes.  The subject land 

division is a revision from the previously approved tentative plat for Phases 4 & 5, 

updated to reflect design changes to accommodate the amount of slope that exists 

on the property.  

 

The submitted plat shows only the southerly half, approximately 30 acres, as part of 

the development, while the northerly half, also approximately 30 acres, is designated 

as Reserve Acreage, proposed for future development.  All of the area proposed to 

be developed with the subject application are within the SFR-2 zoning district, while 

the remaining area, identified a reserve acreage, is zoned SFR-00. Since all areas 

zoned SFR-00 are located within reserve acreage portion of the plat, a zone change is 

not required with this application.  

Page 39



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 5 of 11 
 

The submitted plat also shows two tracts of land, identified as Tracts A & B, to be 

utilized for storm detention and treatment purposes. 

Two public streets are proposed to be extended with the subject request: Saddle 

Ridge Drive and Autumn Park Drive, both classified as Minor Residential streets, and 

both stubbed at the site’s southern boundary.  The subject request also includes the 

creation of three new streets: Summerview Terrace and Wintersun Drive, both to be 

constructed as Minor Residential streets; and Summerview Court, to be constructed 

as a residential lane and to terminate in a cul-de-sac.   

The applicant is also proposing two minimum access easements, serving lots 89, 116, 

and 117, pursuant to MLDC 10.430(A)(1) and 10.450(1);  and is proposing Summerview 

Court to terminate in a cul-de-sac, pursuant to MLDC 10.450(1). 

The applicant has requested the maximum timetable of five years for the platting of 

the subdivision to be completed in phases, pursuant to MLDC 10.202(D)(2). 

Density 

Density Table 

SFR-2 

Minimum /Maximum 

Density 
Allowed Shown 

0.8 to 2.0 dwelling units per 

gross acre 
 24 min. – 60 max. 45 

 

As shown on the Density Table above, based on approximately 30 acres of land 

proposed for development, the creation of 45 lots, as identified on the tentative plat, 

falls within the minimum/maximum range permitted for the SFR-2 zoning district, as 

per MLDC 10.713.  

 

 

 

Intentionally Left Blank 

 

 

 

Page 40



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 6 of 11 
 

Development Standards 

Detached Single Family Dwellings 

Site Development Table (MLDC 10.710) 

SFR-2 Lot Area 

Minimum 

Lot Width 

(Interior) 

Minimum  

Lot Width 

(Corner) 

Minimum 

Lot Depth 

Minimum 

Lot 

Frontage 

Required 
14,000 to 

55,000 
50 feet 80 feet 90 feet 30 feet 

Shown 

14,008  

(Lot 81) to 

40,740  

(Lot 122) 

    

 

As shown in the Site Development Table above, it can be found that the 45 proposed 

lots, as identified on the submitted plat, meet all the dimensional standards for lots 

in the SFR-2 zoning district, as per MLDC 10.710. 

Hillside Ordinance 

Per MLDC 10.929 – 10.933, a 

Slope Analysis is required with 

applications proposing to 

develop on slopes greater than 

15%.  The applicant submitted 

a Hillside Slope Analysis 

(Exhibit G), prepared by 

Construction Engineering 

Consultants (CEC), consistent 

with the requirements 

outlined in MLDC 10.930. The 

analysis shows 2.96 acres, or 

6.8% of the project area, with 

slopes in excess of 35%.  

As required per MLDC 

10.931(B), the applicant’s Slope Analysis was reviewed and approved by the Public 

Works Department. 

 

Page 41



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 7 of 11 
 

Modified Streets 

Per the Hillside Ordinance (MLDC 10.931[E][2]), for streets other than arterial or 

collector streets in areas with slopes in excess of fifteen percent (15%), the approving 

authority may modify public street improvement standards to solve special hillside 

functional problems.  

Pursuant to MLDC 10.937(E)(2)(a-g), the applicant has requested modifications to the 

minor residential street standards, as follows: 

 

 

The applicant’s findings state the 

requested modifications are 

needed due to the existing 

topographic conditions and the 

presence of steep slopes, as 

demonstrated in the submitted 

Hillside Slope Analysis.  The 

submitted findings also state the 

reduced street widths will greatly 

lessen the impact of the volume 

of grading required onsite, and 

help minimize changes to the 

existing topography by limiting the grading to only what is necessary to provide a safe 

circulation for pedestrians and vehicular traffic while meeting the relevant design 

standards.  Further, the reduction of impervious surface, as stated by the applicant, 

will also reduce the amount of stormwater run-off generated by the development, 

thus reducing the potential for erosion. 

Minimum Access Easement (MAE) and Cul-de-sac 

The applicant’s plat shows two proposed MAEs: A MAE is shown coming off of 

Wintersun Drive and cutting through Lot 118, in order to serve Lots 116 and 117, 

which do not have direct street frontage; and a second MAE is shown off of 

Summerview Court, and serving Lots 89 and 90 (Lot 89 does not have direct street 

frontage).  

The proposed Summerview Court is also shown as terminating in a cul-de-sac. 

Page 42



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 8 of 11 
 

 

 

Pursuant to MLDC 10.450, shown above, the construction of both a MAE and a cul-

de-sac requires discretionary approval through the Planning Commission.  The 

applicant has formally requested the approval of two MAEs and a cul-de-sac to be 

included as part of the subdivision plat.  

The applicant’s findings identify the existing topographic conditions and the presence 

of steep slopes, as demonstrated in the submitted Hillside Slope Analysis, as meeting 

condition (a) cited above.  The applicant’s findings further state that the proposed cul-

de-sac meets all the design standards as outlined in MLDC 10.450(2), and the same 

steep slopes also prevents the construction of an accessway, as per MLDC 

10.450(1)(c). 

Staff has reviewed the applicant’s submitted plat and findings, and is supportive of 

both the applicant’s request for the construction of two MAEs, as well as the request 

Page 43



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 9 of 11 
 

to construct a cul-de-sac at the terminus of Summerview Court, and without the 

construction of the pedestrian accessway.  

Transportation 

In 2001, the subject site was approved for a rezone (ZC-00-159), which included a 

traffic study submitted by the applicant.  The traffic study included with the 

application concluded that improvements at the intersection of North Phoenix Road 

and Cherry Lane were necessary to maintain an adequate level of service.  

Accordingly, the applicant stipulated to limit traffic generation to a maximum of 925 

ADT for the subject area until improvements were completed at the North 

Phoenix/Cherry Lane intersection.  With the approval of the zone change request, a 

Restricted Zoning (RZ) Administrative Mapping overlay was applied to the subject site.  

Per the Public Works staff report (Exhibit H), the intersection of North Phoenix Road 

and Cherry Lane is now realigned and signalized, and there are no remaining 

stipulations on this development.  

At the time of this writing, staff is reviewing a request by the applicant (submitted on 

April 22, 2020) requesting the removal of the RZ overlay applied to the site, pursuant 

to MLDC 10.413(B). 

Facility Adequacy 

Per the agency comments submitted to staff (Exhibits H-J), it can be found that, with 

the imposition of the conditions of approval contained in Exhibit A, there are 

adequate facilities to serve the future development of the site. 

Other Agency Comments 

Jackson County Roads (Exhibit K) 

In their submitted report, Jackson County Roads lists eight comments, including a 

request that the applicant provide a Traffic Impact Study (TIS). 

On April 30, 2020, staff received an email from the applicant’s agent, Robert 

Neathammer (Exhibit Q), requesting the removal of items 1 and 3—requests for a TIS 

and a hydraulic report, respectively—listed in Jackson County’s report.  In the letter, 

Mr. Neathammer states that a Traffic Study is unwarranted, as traffic capacity issues 

are within the approval criteria of a zone change, and all traffic stipulations 

established with ZC-00-159 have been satisfied.  In regards to comment #3 in the 

Jackson County Roads’ report, Mr. Neathammer states that all proposed drainage, 

detention and associated improvements will adhere to City of Medford standards, 

and therefore an additional review and approval from another jurisdictional body is 

unnecessary.  

Page 44



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 10 of 11 
 

Staff concurs with the applicant that a TIS is unwarranted, as a Traffic Study was 

submitted with ZC-00-159, and all stipulations have been satisfied.  In regards to 

Jackson County’s request to review and comment on the applicant’s hydraulic report 

(listed as item 3 in Jackson County’s report), it is staff’s view that such a request is 

warranted.  The subject site abuts Jackson County land along its easterly boundary, 

and the site’s drainage could potentially impact adjacent facilities under Jackson 

County’s jurisdiction. The applicant submitted a hydraulic plan with the subject 

application (Exhibit O), and the report was reviewed and approved by the City’s 

Engineer. The applicant will be required to forward the hydraulic plan to Jackson 

County Roads for their review. 

As a discretionary condition of approval, staff requests that the applicant be required 

to comply with all requirements listed in the report submitted by Jackson County 

Roads, with the exception of the request that the applicant submit a Traffic Impact 

Study, as included in comment #1.  

Committee Comments 

No comments were received from a committee, such as BPAC.  

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 

Tentative Plat 

Staff finds the subdivision plat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and all 

applicable design standards set forth in Articles IV and V.  Furthermore, the 

subdivision will not prevent development of the remainder of the property under the 

same ownership or of adjoining land; bears a name (Saddle Ridge Subdivision), which 

has been reviewed and approved by the City’s Address Technician; the plat includes 

the creation of public streets, which have are laid out consistent with existing and 

planned streets; and criteria 5 and 6 are inapplicable. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt the findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare a Final Order 

for approval of LDS-20-025 per the staff report dated May 7, 2020, including:  

 Exhibits A through Q;  

 Modifications to residential street standards; 

 Approval of two Minimum Access Easements; 

 Approval of  the proposed Summerview Court to terminate into a Cul-de-sac; 

 Granting of the maximum timetable of five years for the platting of the 

subdivision in phases. 

Page 45



Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phases 4 & 5  Staff Report 

File no.LDS-20-025  May 7, 2020 

Page 11 of 11 
 

EXHIBITS 

A Conditions of Approval, drafted May 7, 2020. 

B Tentative Plat (2 of 2), received January 27, 2020. 

C Conceptual Grading & Drainage Plan, received January 27, 2020. 

D Conceptual Road Sections, received January 27, 2020. 

E Conceptual Utility Plan, received January 27, 2020. 

F Applicant’s Findings of Fact & Conclusions of Law, received January 27, 2020. 

G Applicant’s Slope Analysis, received January 27, 2020. 

H Public Works Staff Report, received March 12, 2020.  

I Medford Water Commission memo & associated map, received March 12, 

2020. 

J Medford Fire Department Report, received March 12, 2020. 

K Jackson County Roads, received February 21, 2020.  

L City Address Technician memo, received March 4, 2020. 

M Parks Department memo, received March 4, 2020. 

N Applicant’s Geotechnical report, received on January 27, 2020. 

O Applicant’s Hydrology and Grading report, received on January 27, 2020. 

P Constraints analysis form, signed by City Engineer on January 22, 2020. 

Q  Applicant’s letter, received April 30, 2020. 

Vicinity map  

 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA:  APRIL 23, 2020 
 MAY 14, 2020 

 
 

 

 

Page 46



 

 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Saddle Ridge Subdivision  

LDS-20-025 

Conditions of Approval 

May 7, 2020 

 

Discretionary Conditions 

1. The Planning Commission authorizes the maximum five year approval period for 

phased subdivisions. No extension of time is permitted. 

2. Comply with all requirements of Jackson County Roads (Exhibit K), with the exception 

of item #1, requesting that the applicant provide a Traffic Impact Study.   

 

CODE REQUIRED CONDITIONS 

Prior to the approval of the final plat, the applicant shall: 

3. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Public Works Department 

(Exhibit H) 

4. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Water Commission (Exhibit I). 

5. Comply with all conditions stipulated by the Medford Fire Department (Exhibit J). 

6. Comply with requirements of City Address Technician (Exhibit L).  

 

Page 47

KAEvans
Exhibit



Page 48

KAEvans
B



Page 49



Page 50

KAEvans
C



Page 51

KAEvans
D



Page 52

KAEvans
E



Page 53

KAEvans
F



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



 
 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx Page 1 of 12 

LD DATE: 3/4/2020 

File Number: LDS-20-025 

Revised Date: 3/12/2020 
 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT STAFF REPORT 
 

Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 
45-Lot Subdivision 

 
Project: Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – 

Phase 4 & 5, a proposed 45-lot residential subdivision on two, contiguous 

parcels totaling 59.5 acres, which includes two tracts of land to be used for 

storm detention, and a reserve acreage portion.  
 

Location:  The property is located east of Cherry lane, north of Hillcrest Road, and is 

transected by Roxy Ann Road; and is within the SFR-2 (Single-Family 

Residential, two dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-00 (Single-Family 

Residential, one dwelling unit per lot) zoning district, and with an RZ 

(Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping overlay (371W23DA1500 & 

371W23101). 
 

Applicant:  Applicant, Michael Mahar; Agent, Neathamer Surveying, Inc.; Planner, Dustin 

Severs.  
 

 

The following items shall be completed and accepted prior to the respective events under 

which they are listed: 
 

 Approval of Final Plat: 

Right-of-way, construction and/or assurance of the public improvements in 

accordance with Medford Land Development Code (MLDC), Section 10.666 & 

10.667 (Items A, B & C) 
 

 Issuance of first building permit for residential construction: 

Construction of public improvements (Items A through E) 
 

 Issuance of Certificates of Occupancy for individual units: 

Sidewalks (Items A2) 

  

Page 62

KAEvans
H



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 2 of 12 

A. STREETS 
 

1. Dedications 
 

Autumn Park Drive, Saddle Ridge Drive, Summerview Terrace and Wintersun Drive are 

proposed as a Minor Residential Streets with right-of-way widths of 40-feet, consistent with 

the standard prescribed by MLDC 10.430 and allowed by 10.931. 
 

Summerview Court is proposed as a Residential Lane within the MLDC 10.430.  The 

Developer shall dedicate for public right-of-way, sufficient width of land along the frontage 

to comply with the full width of right-of-way, which is 33-feet.  The proposed cul-de-sac at 

the south terminus shall be dedicated per MLDC 10.450, and have a minimum 45-foot 

radius. 
 

The minimum access easement (MAE) drives shall be private and constructed in 

accordance with MLDC Section 10.430A(1) and have a minimum width of 20-feet. 
 

Corner radii shall be provided at the right-of-way lines of all intersecting streets per MLDC 

10.445. 
 

Streets, as shown on the Tentative Plat, in which any portion terminates to a boundary line 

of the Development shall be dedicated to within one foot of the boundary line, and the 

remaining one foot shall be granted in fee simple, as a non-access reserve strip to the City 

of Medford.  Upon approved dedication of the extension of said streets, the one-foot 

reserve strip shall automatically be dedicated to the public use as part of said street 

without any further action by the City of Medford (MLDC 10.439). 
 

Public Utility Easements (PUE), 10-feet in width, shall be dedicated along the street frontage 

of all the Lots within this development (MLDC 10.471). 
 

The right-of-way and easement dedications shall be submitted directly to the Engineering 

Division of the Public Works Department.  The submittal shall include: the right-of-way and 

easement dedication, including an exhibit map; a copy of a current Lot Book Report, 

Preliminary Title Report, or Title Policy; a mathematical closure report (if applicable), and 

the Planning Department File Number; for review and City Engineer acceptance signature 

prior to recordation by the applicant. Releases of interest shall be obtained by holders of 

trust deeds or mortgages on the right-of-way and PUE area. 
 

2. Public Improvements 
 

a. Public Streets 
 

Autumn Park Drive, Saddle Ridge Drive, Summerview Terrace and Wintersun Drive shall be 

improved to Minor Residential Street standards in accordance with MLDC 10.430 and 

allowed by 10.931. The developer shall construct a 28-foot wide pavement section 

Page 63



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 3 of 12 

complete with curb and gutter on both sides, and a 5-foot curb-tight sidewalk along the 

downslope side of the section. 
 

Summerview Court shall be constructed to Residential Lane standards, in accordance with 

MLDC 10.430.  The proposed cul-de-sac shall be constructed in accordance with MLDC 

10.450.  
 

The proposed Minimum Access Easement drives shall be constructed to a minimum width 

of 18-feet with AC pavement per (MLDC) 10.430A.  The minimum TI for the structural 

section shall be 3.5, the minimum AC section shall be 3” thick, and the base aggregate shall 

extend one foot beyond the edge of pavement. 
 

The Minimum Access Easement shall be designed by a civil engineer licensed in the State of 

Oregon and plans submitted to the Public Works-Engineering Division for approval.  A 

drainage system shall be incorporated into the paved access design to capture stormwater 

and direct it to the storm drain system. 
 

b. Street Lights and Signing 
 

The Developer shall provide and install in compliance with Section 10.495 of the 

Medford Municipal Code (MMC).  Based on the preliminary plan submitted, the 

following number of street lights and signage will be required: 
 

 Street Lighting – Developer Provided & Installed: 

A. 18 - Type R-100 LED 
 

Traffic Signs and Devices – City Installed, paid by the Developer: 

A. 4 – Street Name Signs 

B. 1 – No Outlet Sign 

C. 1 – Dead End Sign 

D. 3 – Barricades 
 

Numbers are subject to change if changes are made to the plans.  All street lights 

shall be installed per City standards and be shown on the public improvement 

plans.  Public Works will provide preliminary street light locations upon request.  All 

street lights shall be operating and turned on at the time of the final “walk through” 

inspection by the Public Works Department. 
 

The Developer shall pay for City installed signage required by the development.  City 

installed signs include, but are not limited to, street name signs, stop signs, speed signs, 

school signs, dead end signs, and dead end barricades.  Sign design and placement shall be 

per the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).  All signs shall be shown on 

the public improvement plans and labeled as City installed. 
 

The Developer shall be responsible for the preservation and re-installation of all signs 

Page 64



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 4 of 12 

removed during demolition and site preparation work.  The Developer’s contractor shall 

coordinate with the City of Medford Public Works, Maintenance and Operations Division to 

remove any existing signs and place new signs provided the Developer. 
 

c. Pavement Moratoriums 
 

There is a no pavement cutting moratorium currently in effect along the respective 

frontages. 
 

The Developer shall be responsible for notifying by certified letter all utility companies, as 

well as all current property owners of parcels which are adjacent to any Public Street being 

constructed or paved as part of this project. The letter shall inform the utility companies 

and property owners of the City's street moratorium policy with respect to pavement 

cutting for future utility services. The utility companies and property owners shall be given 

the opportunity to install utility services within the right-of-way prior to paving and the 

subsequent moratorium. Notifications shall be mailed by the Developer at least 6 months 

before a street is resurfaced or rebuilt per Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.070. 

Copies of the certifications shall be submitted to the City Engineer with the submittal of the 

preliminary construction drawings. 
 

d. Soils Report 
 

The Developer’s Engineer shall obtain a soils report to determine if there is shrink-swell 

potential in the underlying soils in this development.  If they are present, they shall be 

accounted for in the roadway and sidewalk design within this Development.  The soils 

report shall be completed by a licensed Geotechnical Engineer in the state of Oregon. 
 

e. Access and Circulation 
 

Considering that the intersection of Cherry Lane and North Phoenix Road is now realigned 

and signalized, there are no remaining traffic stipulations on this development.  
 

Driveway access and circulation to and through the proposed development shall comply 

with MLDC 10.550 and 10.426. 
 

f. Easements 
 

All public sanitary sewer or storm drain mains shall be located in paved public streets or 

within easements.  A 12-foot wide paved access shall be provided to any public manholes 

or other structures which are not constructed within the street section, in these locations 

the paved access shall be located within a 15-foot easement. 
 

Easements shall be shown on the final plat and the public improvement plans for all 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains or laterals which cross lots, including any common 

area, other than those being served by said lateral.  The City requires that easement(s) do 

Page 65



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 5 of 12 

not run down the middle of two tax lot lines, but rather are fully contained within one tax 

lot. 
 

3. Section 10.668 Analysis 
 

To support a condition of development that an applicant dedicate land for public use or 

provide a public improvement, the Medford Code requires a nexus and rough 

proportionality analysis which is essentially a codification of the constitutional provisions in 

Nollan and Dolan cases.  
 

10.668 Limitation of Exactions 

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Chapter 10, an applicant for a development 

permit shall not be required, as a condition of granting the application, to dedicate land for 

public use or provide public improvements unless: 
 

(1) the record shows that there is an essential nexus between the exaction and a legitimate 

government purpose and that there is a rough proportionality between the burden of the 

exaction on the developer and the burden of the development on public facilities and 

services so that the exaction will not result in a taking of private property for public use, or 
 

(2) a mechanism exists and funds are available to fairly compensate the applicant for the 

excess burden of the exaction to the extent that it would be a taking. 
 

1. Nexus to a legitimate government purpose 

The purposes for these dedications and improvements are found throughout the Medford 

Code, the Medford Transportation System Plan, and the Statewide Planning Rule, and 

supported by sound public policy.  Those purposes and policies include, but are not limited 

to: development of a balanced transportation system addressing all modes of travel, 

including motor vehicles, transit, bicycles, and pedestrians.  It can be found that the listed 

right-of-way dedications and improvements have a nexus to these purposes and policies.   
 

2. Rough proportionality between the dedications and improvements, and the impacts of 

development.   

No mathematical formula is required to support the rough proportionality analysis.  It has 

been described as comparing apples to oranges.  Further, we are allowed to consider the 

benefits to the development from the dedication and improvements when determining 

“rough proportionality.” 
 

As set forth below, the dedications and improvements recommended herein can be found 

to be roughly proportional to the impacts reasonably anticipated to be imposed by this 

development. 
 

Autumn Park Drive, Saddle Ridge Drive, Summerview Terrace, Summerview Court and 

Wintersun Drive: 
 

In determining rough proportionality, the City averaged the lineal footage of roadway per 

Page 66



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 6 of 12 

dwelling unit for road improvements and averaged square foot of right-of-way per dwelling 

unit for dedications.  The proposed development has 45 dwelling units and will improve 

approximately 3,232 lineal feet of roadway which equates to 71.8 lineal feet per dwelling 

unit.  Also the development will dedicate approximately 128,160 square feet of right-of-way 

which equates to approximately 2,848 square feet per dwelling unit. 
 

To determine proportionality a neighborhood with similar characteristics was used.  The 

development used was pervious phases of Summerfield Subdivision located between 

Stanford and Lone Oak and Cherry Lane and Shamrock and consisted of 152 dwelling units.  

The pervious development improved approximately 7,530 lineal feet of roadway and 

dedicated approximately 425,230 square feet of right-of-way (GIS data used to calculate, 

approximations only).  This equates to approximately 49.5 lineal feet of road per dwelling 

unit and approximately 2,800 square feet of right-of-way per dwelling unit.  
 

a. Dedication will ensure that new development and density intensification provides 

the current level of urban services.  This development will create an additional 45 

new Lots within the City of Medford and increase vehicular traffic by approximately 

425 average daily trips. The proposed street improvements will provide a safe 

environment of all modes of travel (vehicular, bicycles, & pedestrians) to and from 

this development. 
 

b. Dedication will ensure adequate street circulation is maintained.  The street layout 

and connectivity proposed in this development will provide alternate route choices 

for the residents that will live in this neighborhood.  This will decrease emergency 

vehicle response times and will decrease overall vehicle miles traveled.   
 

c. Dedication will provide access and transportation connections at urban level of 

service standards for this development.  The connections proposed in this 

development will enhance the connectivity for all modes of transportation and 

reduce trip lengths.  As trip lengths are reduced, it increases the potential for other 

modes of travel including walking and cycling. 
 

d. Dedication of PUE will benefit development by providing public utility services, 

which are out of the roadway and more readily available to each Lot being served. 
 

The additional traffic of all modes of travel generated by this proposed development 

supports the dedication and improvements for all modes of travel and utilities.  As 

indicated above, the area required to be dedicated and improved for this development is 

necessary and roughly proportional to that required in previous developments in the 

vicinity to provide a transportation system that meets the needs for urban level services. 

 

B. SANITARY SEWERS 
 

The proposed development is situated within the Medford sewer service area.  The 

Developer shall provide one service lateral to each buildable lot prior to approval of the 

Page 67



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 7 of 12 

Final Plat. 
 

Public sanitary sewer mains shall be extended on their courses to the exterior boundaries 

of this subdivision, such that future development can extend service without having to 

excavate back into the improvements provided by this subdivision. 

 

C. STORM DRAINAGE 
 

1. Hydrology 
 

The Design Engineer shall provide an investigative report of the off-site drainage on the 

subdivision perimeter, a distance not less than 100 feet in all directions.  All off-site 

drainage affecting the subdivision shall be addressed on the subdivision drainage plan. A 

hydrology map depicting the amount of area the subdivision will be draining shall be 

submitted with hydrology and hydraulic calculations. The opening of each curb inlet shall 

be sized in accordance with ODOT design standards. These calculations and maps shall be 

submitted with the public improvement plans for approval by the Engineering Division.  
 

2. Storm Drainage Conditions 
 

Developer to provide a 20-foot storm drainage easement for any open channel. 
 

Developer needs US Army Corps of Engineers concurrence to pipe any existing drainage 

channels. 
 

3. Stormwater Detention and Water Quality Treatment 
 

This development shall provide stormwater detention in accordance with MLDC, Section 

10.486, and water quality treatment in accordance with the Rogue Valley Stormwater 

Quality Manual per MLDC, Section 10.481. For developments over five acres, Section 10.486  

requires that the development set a minimum of 2% of the gross area as open space to be 

developed as open ponds for stormwater detention and treatment. 
 

Each phase will be required to have its own stormwater detention and water quality 

treatment.  If the Developer desires to do so, a Stormdrain Masterplan may be submitted 

in lieu of requiring each phase to have separate stormwater detention and water quality 

treatment. The Stormdrain Masterplan shall be submitted and reviewed with each phase’s 

construction plans and shall be constructed with any phase to be served by the facility. 
 

Prior to acceptance of the public improvements, the developer’s design engineer shall 

provide verification that the stormwater quality and detention system is constructed per 

plan.  Verification shall be provided to the Engineering Division on a form provided by the 

Engineering Division.  
 

The City is responsible for operational maintenance of the public storm water 

Page 68



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 8 of 12 

facility.  Irrigation and maintenance of landscape components shall be the responsibility of 

the Developer during the three year vegetation establishment period.  The Developer shall 

establish vegetation per the Rogue Valley Stormwater Quality Design Manual. The 

Developer’s engineer shall submit a draft agreement to this effect (provided by the City or 

in a form acceptable to the City) during plan review and shall execute the agreement prior 

to final plat. 
 

4. Grading 
 

A comprehensive grading plan showing the relationship between adjacent property and 

the proposed subdivision will be submitted with the public improvement plans for 

approval. Grading on this development shall not block drainage from an adjacent property 

or concentrate drainage onto an adjacent property without an easement.  The Developer 

shall be responsible that the final grading of the development shall be in compliance with 

the approved grading plan. 
 

5. Mains and Laterals 
 

The Developer shall show all existing and proposed Storm Drain mains, channels, culverts, 

outfalls and easements on the Conceptual Grading and Drainage Plan and the final 

Construction Plans. 
 

In the event the lot drainage should drain to the back of the lot, the developer shall be 

responsible for constructing a private drain line, including a tee at the low point of each lot 

to provide a storm drain connection. All roof drains and foundation drains shall be 

connected directly to a storm drain system.  
 

A storm drain lateral shall be constructed to each tax lot prior to approval of the Final Plat.  

Easements shall be shown on the Final Plat for storm drain laterals crossing lots other than 

the one being served by the lateral. 
 

6. Erosion Control 
 

Subdivisions of one acre and greater require a run-off and erosion control permit from DEQ. 

The approved permit must be submitted to the Engineering Division prior to public 

improvement plan approval. The erosion prevention and sediment control plan shall be 

included as part of the plan set. Erosion Control set shall include a plan for site stabilization 

at time of Public Improvement Plan acceptance. 

 

D. SURVEY MONUMENTATION AND PLAT REQUIREMENTS 
 

All survey monumentation shall be in place, field-checked, and approved by the City 

Surveyor prior to approval of the final plat. 
 

The Tentative and Final Map should show the entire parcel being subdivided. 

Page 69



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 9 of 12 

 

Tracts A and B do not have a declared purpose.  Both tracts have significant possible 

encroachments according to the tentative map.  If these tracts are to be designated for a 

public purpose the encroachments need to be remedied prior to final plat or as part of 

final plat. 

 

E. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 

1. Design Requirements and Construction Drawings 
 

All public improvements shall be constructed in accordance with the “Engineering Design 

Standards for Public Improvements”, adopted by the Medford City Council. Copies of this 

document are available in the Public Works Engineering office. 
 

2. Construction Plans 
 

Construction drawings for any public improvements for this project shall be prepared by a 

professional engineer currently licensed in the State of Oregon, and submitted to the 

Engineering Division of Medford Public Works Department for approval. Construction 

drawings for public improvements shall be submitted only for the improvements to be 

constructed with each phase.  Approval shall be obtained prior to beginning construction. 

Only a complete set of construction drawings (3 copies) shall be accepted for review, 

including plans and profiles for all streets, minimum access drives, sanitary sewers, storm 

drains, and street lights as required by the governing commission’s Final Order, together 

with all pertinent details and calculations.  A checklist for public improvement plan 

submittal can be found on the City of Medford, Public Works web site 

(http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103).  The Developer shall pay a deposit 

for plan review and construction inspection prior to final plan approval.  Public Works will 

keep track of all costs associated with the project and, upon our acceptance of the 

completed project, will reconcile the accounting and either reimburse the Developer any 

excess deposit or bill the Developer for any additional amount not covered by the deposit. 

The Developer shall pay Public Works within 60 days of the billing date or will be 

automatically turned over for collections. 
 

Please Note: If Project includes one or more Minor Residential streets, an additional Site 

Plan shall be submitted, noting and illustrating, one of the following design options to 

ensure fire apparatus access per MLDC 10.430(2): 
 

 Clustered driveways, 

 Building to have sprinklers, or 

 33-foot paved width. 
 

In order to properly maintain an updated infrastructure data base, the Surveyor of Record 

shall submit an as-built survey prior to the Final Inspection and, the Engineer of Record 

Page 70

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Page.asp?NavID=3103


 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 10 of 12 

shall submit mylar “as-constructed” drawings to the Engineering Division within sixty (60) 

calendar days of the Final Inspection (walk through).  Also, the engineer shall coordinate 

with the utility companies, and show all final utility locations on the "as built" drawings. 
 

3. Phasing 
 

The Tentative Plat shows that this subdivision will be developed in phases.  Any public 

improvements needed to serve a particular phase shall be improved at the time each 

corresponding phase is being developed.  Public improvements not necessarily included 

within the geometric boundaries of any given phase, but are needed to serve that phase 

shall be constructed at the same time.  Construction drawings for public improvements 

shall be submitted only for the improvements to be constructed with each phase. 
 

4. Draft of Final Plat 
 

The Developer shall submit 2 copies of the preliminary draft of the final plat at the same 

time the public improvement plans (3 copies) are submitted.  Neither lot number nor lot 

line changes shall be allowed on the plat after that time, unless approved by the City and all 

utility companies. 
 

5. Permits 
 

Building Permit applications for vertical construction shall not be accepted by the Building 

Department until the Final Plat has been recorded, and a “walk through” inspection has 

been conducted and approval of all public improvements as required by the Planning 

Commission has been obtained for this development. 
 

Concrete or block walls built within a PUE, or within sanitary sewer or storm drain 

easements require review and approval from the Engineering Division of Public Works. 

Walls shall require a separate permit from the Building Department and may also require 

certification by a professional engineer. 
 

6. System Development Charges (SDCs) 
 

Buildings in this development are subject to SDC fees. These SDC fees shall be paid at the 

time individual building permits are taken out. 
 

This development is also subject to storm drain system development charges, the 

Developer is eligible for storm drain system development charge credits for the installation 

of storm drain pipe which is 24-inches in diameter or larger and is not used for storm drain 

detention in accordance with Medford Municipal Code (MMC), Section 3.891.  The storm 

drain system development charge shall be collected at the time of the approval of the final 

plat. 
 

 

Page 71



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 11 of 12 

7. Construction and Inspection 
 

Contractors proposing to do work on public streets (including street lights), sewers, or 

storm drains shall ‘prequalify’ with the Engineering Division prior to starting work.  

Contractors shall work off a set of public improvement drawings that have been approved 

by the City of Medford Engineering Division. Any work within the County right-of-way shall 

require a separately issued permit from the County. 
 

For City of Medford facilities, the Public Works Maintenance Division requires that public 

sanitary sewer and storm drain mains be inspected by video camera prior to acceptance of 

these systems by the City. 
 

Where applicable, the Developer shall bear all expenses resulting from the adjustment of 

manholes to finish grades as a result of changes in the finish street grade. 

 

Prepared by: Jodi K Cope 

Reviewed by: Doug Burroughs 

Revised by: Jodi K Cope 

Page 72



 

City of Medford 200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, OR 97501 (541) 774-2100 cityofmedford.org 

P:\Staff Reports\LDS\2020\LDS-20-025 Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 (TLs 101 & 1500)\LDS-20-025 Staff Report-LD_REV.docx  Page 12 of 12 

SUMMARY CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
Saddle Ridge Subdivision Phases 4 & 5 
45-Lot Subdivision                    LDS-20-025 
 

A. Streets 
 

1. Street Dedications to the Public: 
 Dedicate right-of-way (40’) on Autumn Park Drive, Saddle Ridge Drive, Summerview Terrace and Wintersun Drive. 

 Dedicate full width right-of-way (33’) on Summerview Court. 

 Dedicate Minimum Access Easements. 

 Dedicate 10-foot public utility easements (PUE). 
 

2. Improvements: 
 

Public Streets 
 Construct Autumn Park Drive, Saddle Ridge Drive, Summerview Terrace and Wintersun Drive, to Minor Residential street 

standards. 

 Construct Summerview Court full width to Residential Lane street standards, including the Cul-de-sac. 

 Construct Minimum Access Easement drives. 
 

Lighting and Signing 
 Developer supplies and installs all street lights at own expense. 

 City installs traffic signs and devices at Developer’s expense. 
 

Access and Circulation 
 Considering that the intersection of Cherry Lane and North Phoenix Road is now realigned and signalized, there are no remaining 

traffic stipulations on this development.  

 Driveway access and circulation to and through the proposed development shall comply with MLDC 10.550 and 10.426. 
 

Other 

 No pavement moratorium currently in effect along this developments respective frontages. 

 Provide pavement moratorium letters. 

o Provide soils report. 
 

B. Sanitary Sewer: 
 Provide a private lateral to each lot. 

 Provide easements as necessary. 
 

C. Storm Drainage: 
 Provide an investigative drainage report. 

o Comply with Storm Drainage Conditions outlined above. 

 Provide water quality and detention facilities. 

 Provide Engineers verification of stormwater facility construction. 

 Provide a comprehensive grading plan. 

 Provide storm drain laterals to each tax lot. 

 Provide Erosion Control Permit from DEQ. 
 

D. Survey Monumentation and Plat Requirements 
 Provide all survey monumentation. 

 See additional comments above. 
 

E. General Conditions 
 Provide public improvement plans and drafts of the final plat. 

 Additional Site Plan to ensure fire apparatus access per MLDC 10.430(2) if project includes Minor Residential streets. 

 
 = City Code Requirement 

o = Discretionary recommendations/comments 
 

 

 

The above summary is for convenience only and does not supersede or negate the full report in any way.  If there is any discrepancy between the above 

list and the full report, the full report shall govern.  Refer to the full report for details on each item as well as miscellaneous requirements for the project, 

including requirements for public improvement plans (Construction Plans), design requirements, phasing, draft and final plat processes, permits, system 

development charges, pavement moratoriums and construction inspection. 

Page 73



  

      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

                 Staff Memo 
 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\lds20025.docx                           
 Page 1 of 2 

TO: Planning Department, City of Medford 

FROM: Rodney Grehn P.E., Water Commission Staff Engineer 

SUBJECT: LDS-20-025 

PARCEL ID: 371W23DA TL 1500 & 371W23101 TL 101 

PROJECT: Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phase 
4 & 5, a proposed 45-lot residential subdivision on two, contiguous parcels totaling 
59.5 acres, which includes two tracts of land to be used for storm detention, and a 
reserve acreage portion. The property is located east of Cherry lane, north of 
Hillcrest Road, and is transected by Roxy Ann Road; and is within the SFR-2 
(Single-Family Residential, two dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-00 (Single-
Family Residential, one dwelling unit per lot) zoning district, and with an RZ 
(Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping overlay (371W23DA1500 & 
371W23101); Applicant, Michael Mahar; Agent, Neathamer Surveying, Inc.; 
Planner, Dustin Severs. 

DATE: March 4, 2020 

 
I have reviewed the above plan authorization application as requested.  Conditions for approval and 
comments are as follows: 
 
CONDITIONS 

1. The water facility planning/design/construction process will be done in accordance with the 
Medford Water Commission (MWC) “Regulations Governing Water Service” and “Standards For 
Water Facilities/Fire Protection Systems/Backflow Prevention Devices.” 

2. All parcels/lots of proposed property divisions will be required to have metered water service 
prior to recordation of final map, unless otherwise arranged with MWC. 

3. This proposed development is located within MWC’s Pressure “Zone 5”. There is a small portion 
of the proposed Lots are located partially in the lower portion of Pressure Zone 6 (above 2250 
feet). There shall be no water services, or fire hydrants installed to serve proposed homes 
located above elevation 2250-feet within this Phase. Applicants Civil Engineer shall coordinate 
with MWC Engineering staff. 

4. Installation of an 8-inch “Zone 5” water line is required in a short portion of Saddle Ridge Drive 
from the existing 8-inch water line on the south side of Tract ‘B’. This 8-inch water line is required 
to extend northerly to Lot 104, where the 8-inch water line and 10-foot wide easement is required 
to extend across the south side of “future” Lot 104, and also across the south side of “future” 
Lot 102; where the water line is required to extend northeasterly in Autumn Park Drive to the 
north property line of Lot 99 and shall terminate until such time that Phase 5 is to be constructed. 
Upon completion of Phase 5, said 8-inch water main across Lot 104 and Lot 102 to be 
abandoned in place, coordinate with MWC Engineering and Operations Staff. A “temporary” 
easement shall be submitted for Lots 104 & 102. 

Page 74

KAEvans
I



  

      BOARD OF WATER COMMISSIONERS 

                 Staff Memo 
 

R:\Departments\Engineering\Land Development\Medford Planning\lds20025.docx                           
 Page 2 of 2 

5. Installation of an 8-inch “Zone 5” water line is required to be installed in Summerview Terrace 
between Autumn Park Drive and the intersection of Summerview Terrace and Summerview 
Court. The two branches at the east end of Summerview Terrace are required to be 4-inch water 
lines. Applicants civil engineer shall coordinate with MWC Engineering staff for termination 
points. 

6. Dedication of a 10-foot wide (minimum) access and maintenance easement to MWC over 
all water facilities located outside of public right-of-way is required.  Easement shall be 
submitted to MWC for review and recordation prior to construction. 

7. Installation of a fire hydrant is required at the proposed Phase 4 & Phase 5 Boundary in Autumn 
Park Drive. Applicants civil engineer shall coordinate with Medford Fire Department for Fire 
Hydrant layout. 

8. This Condition includes, but is not limited to: 

a. Phase 4 - Proposed Lots 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96, 97, 98, 99. 

b. Phase 5 - Proposed Lots 110, 111, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119. 

The Lots previously listed shall have “Private” independent (stand-alone) pumping/pressure 
water system to serve each residence. The “Private” water system shall have an aire-gap 
between the fill point and the private holding tank. Private pumps are NOT allowed to pump 
directly from MWC water system. 

9. A hydraulic analysis is required to Phases 4 & 5. Coordinate with MWC Engineering staff. 

 

COMMENTS 

1. Off-site water line installation is not required. 

2. On-site water facility construction is required. (See Condition 4 & 5 above) 

3. MWC-metered water service does not exist to proposed Phase 4 or Phase 5 at this time. 
(See Condition 4 above) 

4. Access to MWC water lines is available. There is a Zone 5, 8-inch water line that is stubbed 
for extension at the existing end of Autumn Park Drive. There is also a Zone 5, 8-inch water 
line at the existing end of Saddle Ridge Drive for “future” Phase 5. 

Page 75



G

G

G

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

G!.

!R

2520

2510
2500

24902480

2470

2460

2450

2440

2430

2420

2410

2400

2390

23802370

2360

2350

23402330

2320

23102300

2290

2280

2270

2260

2250

2240

2200

21702160215021402130212021102100

2070

2130

2120

2110

2080

2420

2410

2400
2390

2380

2370

2360

2350

2340

2330

2320

21902180

2100
2090

2350

2340

2330

232
0

2310

22
30

22
20

20502040

2450

2440

2430

2410

2400

2390
2380

2370

2360

2360

2350

2340

2340

2330

23
20

2310

23
00

2280

22
90 22
80

2270

22
60

2270
2250

2260

22
40

2230

2230

2230

2220

22
20

2210

2210

2200

21
90

2190
2180

2180

2160

2150

21402090
2080

2420

2330

2210

2030

2360

2210

2070

2060

20
60

EXISTING
CHERRY LANE
RESERVOIR

5646

4764

4761

338

5693

4790

5651

5706

5695

4776

4755

326

302

313

5636

4773

334

4785

5641

314

4752

4758

4749

4719

5633

4786

5659

4774

322

5694

4746

4751

5710

309

4735

4742

4767

5722

5650

5726

5646

5655

4770

5678

5686

310

5663

5658

305

330

5654

5691

4743

306

5642

4791

4779

5637

5718

318

4743

5702

4780

4727

8'' DI 1998

8'' DI 1998

8'' DI 1998

6''
 D
I 1
99
4

8
'' 
D
I 
1
9
9
4

8'' DI 1998

12
'' 
D
I 
19
98

12'' DI 1998

8'' DI 2005

8'' DI 1994

8'' DI 1994

8'' DI 2007

10'' DI 1994

H3097
Elev: 2218 ft

H3098
Elev: 2142 ft

H3099
Elev: 2199 ft

H3100
Elev: 2063 ft

H3101
Elev: 2067 ft

H4472
Elev: 2109 ft

H4753
Elev: 2185 ft

H4754
Elev: 2170 ft

Mi
ss
io
n 
Hi
lls
 D
r

FallbrookLn

S
ad

d
le
R
id
g
e
D
r

Torrey Pines Dr

CliffwoodCt

AutumnPark
Dr

Cloudcrest Dr

Cherry
Ln

Roxy
AnnRd

Page 76



Reviewed By: Kleinberg, Greg Review Date: 2/26/2020
Meeting Date: 3/4/2020

LD File #: LDS20025

Planner: Dustin Severs

Applicant: Michael Mahar

Site Name: Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phase 4 & 5

Project Location: East of Cherry lane, north of Hillcrest Road, and is transected by Roxy Ann Road

ProjectDescription: Consideration of tentative plat approval for the Saddle Ridge Subdivision – Phase 4 & 5, a proposed 45-
lot residential subdivision on two, contiguous parcels totaling 59.5 acres, which includes two tracts of
land to be used for storm detention, and a reserve acreage portion. The property is located east of
Cherry lane, north of Hillcrest Road, and is transected by Roxy Ann Road; and is within the SFR-2
(Single-Family Residential, two dwelling units per gross acre) and SFR-00 (Single-Family Residential, one
dwelling unit per lot) zoning district, and with an RZ (Restricted Zoning) Administrative Mapping overlay
(371W23DA1500 & 371W23101);

Conditions
Reference Comments Description

OFC 505 Minimum access address signs are required for lots 89-90 and
116-117.

The developer must provide a minimum
access address sign. A pre-approved
address sign can also be utilized. A
brochure is available at:

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Files/Minimu
m%20Access%20Address%20Sign.pdf

OFC
508.5

Nine (9) fire hydrants are required for this project at the
following locations: One on Saddle Ridge Drive in front of lot
labeled "Tract B" (across from lots 103/104); One on Saddle
Ridge Drive in front of lots 123/124; One on Saddle Ridge Drive
in front of lot 108; One near the corner of Saddle Ridge
Drive/Autumn Park Drive in front of lot 110; One on Wintersun
Drive in front of lot 121; One on Wintersun Drive in front of lot
118; One near the corner of Autumn Park Drive/Summerview
Terrace in front of lot 98; One on Summerview Terrace in front
of lot 84; One near the corner of Summerview
Terrace/Summerview Court in front of lot 91.

When fire hydrants are required, the
approved water supply for fire protection
(hydrants) is required to be installed prior
to construction when combustible material
arrives at the site. In addition, blue
reflective fire hydrant markers are required
to be installed on the road surface to
identify fire hydrant locations at night. 

Plans and specifications for fire hydrant
system shall be submitted to Medford Fire-
Rescue for review and approval prior to
construction. Submittal shall include a copy
of this review (OFC 501.3).

Medford Fire-Rescue Land Development Report

Review/Project Information

Specific Development Requirements for Access & Water Supply

Page 1 of 5          

Page 77

KAEvans
J



OFC D107 Due to only one access road serving this area, all the homes will
be required to be protected with fire sprinkler systems.

D107.1. Developments of one- or two-
family dwellings where the number of
dwelling units exceeds 30 shall be provided
with two separate and approved fire
apparatus access roads and shall meet the
requirements of Section D104.3.

Exceptions:
1. Where there are more than 30 dwelling
units on a single public or private fire
apparatus access road and all dwelling units
are equipped throughout with an approved
automatic sprinkler system in accordance
with Section 903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2 or
903.3.1.3, access from two directions shall
not be required.
2. The number of dwelling units on a single
fire apparatus access road shall not be
increased unless fire apparatus access
roads will connect with future
development, as determined by the fire
code official.

Where two access roads are required, they
shall be placed a distance apart equal to
not less than one half of the length of the
maximum overall diagonal dimension of the
lot or area to be served, measured in a
straight line between accesses (D104.3).

OFC
503.5

Parking shall be posted as prohibited in the fire department
turn-around areas.

Where parking is prohibited on public roads
for fire department vehicle access
purposes, NO PARKING signs shall be
spaced at minimum 50' intervals along the
fire lane (minimum 75' intervals in 1 & 2
family residential areas) and at fire
department designated turn-around areas.
The signs shall have red letters on a white
background stating "NO PARKING". 

Fire apparatus access roads shall not be
obstructed in any manner, including the
parking of vehicles. The minimum widths
(20' wide) and clearances (13' 6" vertical)
shall be maintained at all times (OFC 503.4;
ORS 98.810-12).

Fire apparatus access roads 20-26' wide
shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane.
Fire apparatus access roads more than 26'
to 32' wide shall be posted on one side as a
fire lane (OFC D103.6.1).

This restriction shall be recorded on the
property deed as a requirement for future
construction. 

Contact Public Works Transportation
Manager Karl MacNair 541-774-2115 for
further information.

Page 2 of 5          

Page 78



OFC
503.4

Parking shall be posted as prohibited along both sides of the
minimum access easement driveways and the fire department
turn-around areas.

Fire apparatus access roads 20-26' wide
shall be posted on both sides as a fire lane.
Fire apparatus access roads more than 26'
to 32' wide shall be posted on one side as a
fire lane (OFC D103.6.1).

Where parking is prohibited for fire
department vehicle access purposes, NO
PARKING-FIRE LANE signs shall be spaced
at minimum 50' intervals along the fire lane
(minimum 75' intervals in 1 & 2 family
residential areas) and at fire department
designated turn-around's. The signs shall
have red letters on a white background
stating "NO PARKING-FIRE LANE" (See
handout). 

For privately owned properties,
posting/marking of fire lanes may be
accomplished by any of the following
alternatives to the above requirement
(consult with the Fire Department for the
best option): 

Alternative #1:
Curbs shall be painted red along the entire
distance of the fire department access.
Minimum 4" white letters stating "NO
PARKING-FIRE LANE" shall be stenciled on
the curb at 25-foot intervals.

Alternative #2:
Asphalt shall be striped yellow or red along
the entire distance of the fire department
access. The stripes shall be at least 6" wide,
be a minimum 24" apart, be placed at a
minimum 30-60 degree angle to the
perimeter stripes, and run parallel to each
other. Letters stating "NO PARKING-FIRE
LANE" shall be stenciled on the asphalt at
25-foot intervals. 

Fire apparatus access roads shall not be
obstructed in any manner, including the
parking of vehicles. The minimum widths
(20' wide) and clearances (13' 6" vertical)
shall be maintained at all times (OFC 503.4;
ORS 98.810-12).

This restriction shall be recorded on the
property deed as a requirement for future
construction. 

A brochure is available on our website at:

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/Files/Fire%20
Lane%20Brochure.pdf

Page 3 of 5          

Page 79



MMC
10.430

The developer shall choose between option (a) and option (c)
(Note: Option (b) is not an option because fire sprinklers are
already required due to other access code requirements).

In order to ensure that there is at least
twenty (20) feet of unobstructed clearance
for fire apparatus on 28 feet wide minor
residential streets, the developer shall
choose from one of the following design
options outlined in Medford Code section
10.430:

(a) Clustered, offset (staggered) driveways,
and fire hydrants located at intersections
with the maximum fire hydrant spacing
along the street of 250-feet.

(b) All dwellings that front and take access
from minor residential streets to be
equipped with a residential (NFPA 13D) fire
sprinkler system, and fire hydrants located
at intersection with the maximum fire
hydrant spacing along the street of 500-
feet. 

(c) Total paved width of 33-feet with five-
and-a-half (5 ½) foot planter strips.

The developer shall choose one of the
three options prior to the final plat. If the
clustered-offset driveway option is chosen,
submitted civil plans are required to show
driveway locations which will be reviewed
by the Fire Department and Engineering
Department prior to development. If the
fire sprinkler option is chosen, the
developer shall notify the Fire Department
prior to final plat.

The Fire Department reserves the right to
require parking restrictions with no parking
signs in areas where the clustered-offset
driveway option breaks down for short
distances. Parking restrictions shall not be
deemed as a separate option to the overall
layout of the subdivision. If the developer
by preference does not design the
clustered/offset driveways into the overall
design of the minor residential street,
option (b) or (c) must be chosen. 

The Oregon Fire Code requires; "Fire
apparatus access roads shall have an
unobstructed width of not less than 20
feet and unobstructed vertical clearance of
not less than 13 feet 6 inches" (OFC
503.2.1). "The required width of a fire
apparatus access road shall not be
obstructed in any manner, including parking
of vehicles. Minimum required widths and
clearances established in Section 503.2.1,
shall be maintained at all times." (OFC
503.4).

R327.4 Wildfire hazard zone exterior ignition-resistant construction
requirements.

The homes in this subdivision are located in
the wildfire hazard zone and are required
to be built with ignition-resistant
materials/features according to Oregon
Residential Specialty Code section R327.4.

Page 4 of 5          

Page 80



WHZ HIZ Wildfire hazard zone vegetation recommendations. This development is located in a wildfire
hazard zone. It is recommended that
landscaping planning include: 

0-5 feet perimeter around home: make this
a non-combustible zone (concrete or non-
combustible ground covering). 

0-30 feet perimeter around home: Utilize
fire resistant vegetation (See Oregon State
University's "Fire Resistant Shrubs and
Trees in SW Oregon").

0-100 feet perimeter around home: Plan so
that fully grown tree crown positioning
provides a minimum 10' horizontal
clearance to chimneys or any part of
structure, that fully grown tree crown
positioning to provide a minimum 15'
clearance to other fully grown tree
crowns, and ladder fuels are considered
(vegetation like taller shrubs below trees
that will spread fire into tree crown).

Development shall comply with access and water supply requirements in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code in affect at
the time of development submittal. Fire apparatus access roads are required to be installed prior to the time of construction.
The approved water supply for fire protection (fire hydrants) is required to be installed prior to construction when
combustible material arrives at the site.

Specific fire protection systems may be required in accordance with the Oregon Fire Code.
This plan review shall not prevent the correction of errors or violations that are found to exist during construction. This plan
review is based on information provided only.

Design and installation shall meet the Oregon requirements of the International Fire, Building, Mechanicial Codes and
applicable NFPA Standards.

Construction General Information/Requirements

Medford Fire-Rescue, 200 S Ivy St. Rm 180, Medford OR 97501 541-774-2300

www.medfordfirerescue.org

Page 5 of 5          

Page 81



Page 82

KAEvans
K



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101

KAEvans
Q



Page 102



Saddle Ridge Subdivision
   Phases 4 & 5

1/28/2020

Project Name:

Map/Taxlot:

Du
nth

orp
eDr

Aven
el

Ct

La Costa
Cir

Su
mm

it
Rid

ge
 Ci

r

Be
rm

uda
Dr

Wi
ldw

oo
d

Cir

Waile
a

Ct

Dora
l C

ir

Merion Ct

Sa
dd

le
Rid

ge
Dr

Hathaway Dr

Pe
bb

le
Be

ac
h C

t

Evenbrook
Dr

Eagle Trace Dr

Cherry Ln

Wolf Run Dr

Mission

Hills Dr

Marissa
Cir

Oaktree
Cir

Re
d

Ha
wk

Dr

Clif f w ood

C t

Roxy Ann Rd

SpyglassCt

Highcrest Dr

Stardust Way

Fallbrook Ln

Aerial Heights Dr

Cy
pre

ss
Po

int

Dr

Oakle af
Pass Dr

M on ter
ey

Dr

Cloudcre st Dr

Torrey Pines Dr

Moon Ter

Hillcrest Rd

Autumn Park Dr

Angelcrest Dr

Roxy Ann Rd

Ch
err

y L
n

Hillcrest Rd

4

3

2

1

LDS20-025
Vicinity

Map

File Number:

Subject Area

0 1,000500 Feet

Legend
Subject Area
Tax Lots s371W23 TL 101 &

371W23DA TL 1500

Page 103



 

 
 

STAFF REPORT  
for a Type IV legislative decision: Development Code Amendment  

Project  Electric Fence Amendment 

File no. DCA-19-010 

Applicant: Amarok (Electric Guard Dog), Michael Pate 

Agent: Greg Lemhouse, United Strategies 

To Planning Commission for 05/14/2020 hearing 

From Carla Angeli Paladino, Principal Planner 

Reviewer Matt Brinkley, AICP CFM, Planning Director 

Date May 7, 2020 

BACKGROUND 
Proposal  

A legislative code amendment to modify the electric fence regulations found in Sections 
9.560, 9.561, 10.732, and 10.839 of the Municipal Code. (See Exhibit A) 

History  

The electric fence regulations found in Chapter 9 of the Municipal Code were adopted by 
Council Bill No. 2015-88 in September 2015.  

Planning staff was contacted in July 2019 by John Watt and Greg Lemhouse of JWA Public 
Affairs.  Mr. Lemhouse (now with United Strategies) represented Amarok (formerly 
Electric Guard Dog) who was interested in pursuing a citizen-initiated code amendment 
to expand the zoning districts where electric fences are permitted. The applicant’s original 
proposal suggested allowing electric fences in all of the commercial and industrial with 
the exception of the Central Business overlay and the Public Parks zoning district. The 
topic was discussed with the Planning Commission during their August 26, 2019 study 
session. Staff was not in favor of the Planning Commission initiating the code amendment 
because it was unclear at the time what the reasoning was for expanding into all of the 
commercial zoning districts.  Staff was also concerned with the aesthetic impact on the 
City’s built environment with such a wide reaching scope. 

Page 104



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 2 

 

The applicant’s request was forwarded to the Planning Commission for formal discussion 
and initiation at their September 12, 2019 public hearing. The Commissioners voted 6-1 
in favor of initiating the amendment. The amendment was added to the Long Range 
Division’s 2020 work tasks. The applicant paid for the amendment in October 2019.   

Planning and Fire-Rescue staff began drafting changes to Chapter 9, where the bulk of the 
regulations are housed, in March and April 2020. The majority of the changes proposed 
were agreed upon by staff and the applicant. The remaining topic of where to permit and 
prohibit electric fences became the focus of the discussion and proposed changes.  
Planning staff drafted three options for consideration by the Planning Commission and 
City Council. Study sessions were held by both the Planning Commission and City Council 
on April 27th and April 30th.  Of the three Options, Options #1 and #3 provided for the 
most discussion and analysis. A breakdown of the two options is below.    

Option #1 Option #3 
Permitted uses Permitted uses 

Identified 7 
distinct uses 
that would 
permit electric 
fences 

Heavy Construction 
Equipment Rental and 
Leasing 
Auto Dismantlers & 
Metal Recyclers 
Trucking Establishments 
Towing Companies 
Outdoor Storage areas 
Auto repair, Services, 
and Garages 
Control of livestock 

Allow in 5 
zoning 
districts 
regardless of 
the use on 
the property  

Community Commercial 
Heavy Commercial 
Light Industrial 
General Industrial 
Heavy Industrial 

Prohibited Areas Prohibited Areas 

Listed distinct 
areas and 
zoning 
districts, plus 
when adjacent 
to residential 
zones, 

Central Business overlay 

Liberty Park Plan Area 

Southeast Plan Area 

Same list as 
Option #1 
minus the 
adjacency 
requirements 

Central Business Overlay 

Liberty Park Plan Area 

Southeast Plan Area 

Page 105



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 3 

 

residential 
uses in 
commercial 
zones, and 
Public Parks 
zone 

When adjacent to 
residential dwelling units 
built in any commercial 
zoning district 

Neighborhood 
Commercial and Service 
Commercial/Professional 

Single-family and Multi-
family zones or when 
adjacent to these zones 

In the Public Parks zoning 
district or when adjacent 
to this zone 

Neighborhood 
Commercial and Service-
Commercial/Professional 

Single-family and Multi-
family zones 

Public Parks zone 

     

Based on discussions with both the Planning Commission and City Council, Option #3 was 
identified as the preferred option.   

Authority  

This proposed plan authorization is a legislative amendment of Chapter 9 and Chapter 10 
of the Municipal Code. The Planning Commission is authorized to recommend, and the 
City Council to approve, amendments to Chapter 10 under Medford Municipal Code 
Sections 10.214 and 10.218.  

ANALYSIS 
Prior to 2015, electric fences were prohibited unless used for the control of livestock and 
when located inside of an existing fence.  Therefore, the current regulations adopted five 
years ago are relatively new and are limited in scope. Available data from the City on the 
location and number of permits issued since 2015 is sparse, potentially meaning the City 
does not have a large number of these types of fences installed to date. Amarok, the 
applicant for this code amendment, reviewed their database and provided the location of 
five electric fence installations within the City (one of the locations is not permitted 
because of the zoning). 

Amarok has been an electric fence security system provider since the 1990s and provides 
this type of fencing to businesses across the country. The request to review and modify 
the current regulations stems from interested customers within Medford unable to have 
this type of system because of limitations on where these types of fences can be located.   

Page 106



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 4 

 

Overall a review and update to the electric fence requirements is positive because it 
provides an opportunity to revise standards that are identified in building codes, clarify 
fence details, update emergency access provisions, and incorporate new language that 
was not previously addressed such as hours of operation and surveillance.  

Specifically, the main topic of discussion for this amendment focuses on where electric 
fences should be permitted and where they should be prohibited. As noted previously, 
the allowance of electric fences in a broader context (in more zoning districts) has only 
occurred over the last five years. The current amendment as proposed opens up that 
allowance even further causing concern for possible aesthetic and compatibility issues 
with residential uses and commercial centers. In response, the amendment identifies 
specific plan areas and zoning districts where electric fences are prohibited, providing a 
balance on the topic.  

The finer point of this issue is in locations where commercial or industrial uses are 
adjacent to residential zones, residential uses, or commercial centers. These specific 
circumstances are unique land use situations where a residential home may share a 
property line with a commercial or industrial use, and which property owner’s right for 
safety, security, and livability carries more weight? The residential property owner does 
not have the right to install an electric fence whereas the commercial/industrial property 
owner does. This potential conflict can be addressed through adherence of the bufferyard 
standards already available in Chapter 10 of the development code. Protections are in 
place for these very scenarios and if they are installed will help reduce the visual 
appearance of an electric fence through use of fences or walls along property lines, 
landscaping, and setbacks. The proposal seeks to use these existing buffer standards to 
help reduce the potential visual conflicts for the residential owner while still allowing for 
a business owner to install an electric fence security system.     

Electric fence security systems, such as those provided by Amarok, provide business 
owners with a multi-layer protection barrier (fencing, warning signs, non-lethal shock, and 
alarms) that would cause a potential trespasser to rethink invading the premise. The 
proposal allows business owners within the five zoning districts outlined to determine if 
this type of protection is necessary for their property and the requirements that must be 
followed in order to install an electric fence.  The amendment also tries to be mindful of 
areas like the downtown core and residential and neighborhood-scale commercial zoning 
districts by prohibiting electric fences in these locations. The proposal seeks to balance 
competing interests.  

 

 

Page 107



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 5 

 

FINDINGS AND CONCLUSIONS 
The criteria that apply to code amendments are found in Medford Municipal Code 
§10.218. The criteria are rendered in italics; findings and conclusions in roman type.  

Land Development Code Amendment. The Planning Commission shall base its 
recommendation and the City Council its decision on the following criteria: 

10.184 (2) (a). Explanation of the public benefit of the amendment.  

Findings 

Satisfied.  The use of electric fence security system is voluntary and provides a 
business owner the ability to choose a heightened defense system to protect their 
goods and property from theft and crime. At a high level, such protection and 
monitoring may benefit the City’s law enforcement by reducing the number of calls 
made to the police department and allowing for officers to focus on more serious 
types of crimes. Properties that were once targets may no longer be and criminal 
activity in a particular location may be reduced or stop because of these systems.   

Generally, the proposal provides an opportunity to update standards, add provisions, 
and clarify regulations that are out of date, no longer apply, or are relevant to enhance 
the topic being evaluated.  In this case, Planning and Fire-Rescue staff coordinated to 
amend the electric fence language to better align with building and fire code 
provisions, emergency access needs, and simplify text to make the rules more 
understandable.   

Conclusions 

The provisions provide another means for business and property owners to protect 
their sites. Additional protections to properties may assist by reducing the City’s case 
load on theft crimes. The regulations are updated to ensure access by emergency 
personnel is safe and efficient. Overall, the amendment reflects needed changes to 
better understand and enforce the code related to electric fences.  This criterion is 
satisfied.  

10.184 (2) (b). The justification for the amendment with respect to the following factors: 

1. Conformity with goals and policies of the Comprehensive Plan considered relevant 
to the decision. 

Findings 

Satisfied. The amendments to the electric fence regulations most closely align 
with the goals and policies found in the Fire Emergency Services and Law 
Enforcement provisions of the Comprehensive Plan.  Specifically the following 
statements: 

Page 108



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 6 

 

Fire Emergency Services Policy 3-C: The City of Medford Fire Department shall 
provide staff to adequately review development proposals for compliance with 
the Uniform Fire Code.   

Implementation 3-C(1):  Review development proposals to assure 
adequate and timely access for all necessary fire apparatus.  

Staff from Fire-Rescue were co-writers of the proposed electric fence 
amendments. Their involvement provided changes to ensure the safety of 
emergency personnel and vehicles to access properties with an electric fence 
security system and important updates related to fire and building codes, warning 
signs, and permit and inspection requirements.   

Law Enforcement Goal 1: To provide a safe and secure environment for people 
and property in the City of Medford.  

Policy 1-A: The City of Medford Police Department shall strive to provide 
rapid and timely response to all emergencies.   

Issues with theft and burglary are a problem in the City of Medford as noted in the 
e-mail from Chief Clauson. Electric fence security systems provide business 
owners with another tool they can use to defend against crime occurring on their 
properties.  

Conclusions 

The City’s first responders are an important consideration in the proposal to 
ensure they can safely and easily gain access to properties armed with an electric 
fence security system in the event of an emergency. In addition, Fire and Police 
staff are in support of the provisions to help mitigate impacts of crime on business 
owners.  The Comprehensive Plan broadly relates to the proposal.  This criterion 
is satisfied.    

2. Comments from applicable referral agencies regarding applicable statutes or 
regulations. 

Findings 

Satisfied. The proposal was drafted by both Planning and Fire-Rescue staff and 
reviewed and coordinated closely with Building Safety and Legal staff. The 
proposal was distributed to internal and external referral agencies for review and 
comments.  A Land Development committee meeting was held on April 29, 2020, 
to discuss the proposal.  The following partners provided emails or memorandums 
with official no comments on the subject: Oregon Department of Aviation, Public 
Works-Engineering, Medford Water Commission, and Fire-Rescue.  

Page 109



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 7 

 

Following the City Council study session, Police Chief Scott Clauson was e-mailed 
the draft proposal to gain insights from the law enforcement perspective on the 
need for these types of fences.  The e-mail from Chief Clauson is attached to the 
record. (See Exhibit B)   

Conclusions 

The proposal was coordinated with internal city agencies to capture applicable 
Building and Fire Code requirements and updates. The amendment was discussed 
with Police Chief Clauson in order to better understand the issues businesses are 
facing with theft and burglary and the impact additional protection of an electric 
fence could provide. Referral agencies were provided the opportunity to review 
the amendment and provide comments.  This criterion is satisfied.     

3. Public comments. 

Findings 

Satisfied. The proposal has been discussed during three public study sessions. To 
date, only one public comment via e-mail has been received on the topic from 
Robert Shand. (See Exhibit C) The proposal will be posted on the City’s website for 
review by the public and will be provided to the Planning Departments’ interested 
parties list for code amendments.   

The proposal will be discussed and deliberated on at two scheduled public 
hearings on May 14th and June 18th providing opportunities for additional public 
input and testimony.    

Conclusions 

The development and review of code amendments is conducted in a public setting 
providing opportunities for citizens to engage and provide input throughout the 
process.  The upcoming public hearings are additional avenues for residents to 
participate in the legislative code amendment process.  This criterion is satisfied.   

4. Applicable governmental agreements.  

Findings 

Not Applicable. There are no established governmental agreements between the 
City and another jurisdiction associated with electric fence provisions.   

Conclusions 

This criterion is found to be not applicable to this proposal.   

Page 110



Electric Fence Amendment Staff Report 
File no. DCA-19-010 May 7, 2020 

Page | 8 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Based on the findings and conclusions that all of the applicable criteria are either satisfied 
or not applicable, forward a favorable recommendation for approval of DCA-19-010 to 
the City Council based on the staff report dated May 7, 2020, including Exhibits A through 
D.  

EXHIBITS 
A Proposed amendment 
B E-mail dated May 1, 2020 from Chief Scott Clauson 
C E-mail dated April 30, 2020 from Robert Shand 
D Planning Commission Study Session Minutes, April 27, 2020 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA: MAY 14, 2020

Page 111



1 Draft Final 
Updated 2020-05-05 

(Deleted language is struck through and new language is red underlined)  

9.560 Fences and Walls 

Pursuant to and in conjunction with Medford Code Sections 10.731 – 10.733, the following 
shall be prohibited. 

(1) Electric Electrified fencing, except as regulated by Section 9.561;

9.561 Electric Electrified Fences 

It shall be unlawful for any person to install, maintain or operate an electric  electrified 
fence in violation of this section. The construction and use of electric electrified fences shall 
be allowed in the city only as provided in this section, and sections 10.731 through 10.735, 
subject to the following standards. 

Definition: 

Electrified Fence – Any fence, barrier or enclosure partially or totally enclosing a building, 
field or yard, carrying any electrical pulse or charge through any part, section or element 
thereof.   

(1) Permitted. Electric fences shall only be permitted around outdoor storage areas
including vehicle storage areas in the following zones: C-C, C-H, I-L, I-G, and I-H or where
needed to control livestock.,

(2) Prohibited.  Electrified fences are prohibited in the following locations:

a. Central Business overlay district;
b. Liberty Park Plan Area;
c. S-E Plan Area;
d. The Neighborhood Commercial (C-N) and Service-Commercial/Professional (C-S/P)

zoning districts; 
e. All of the Single Family and Multi-Family zones (SFR-00 through SFR-10, MFR-15,

MFR-20, and MFR-30); 
f. In the Public Parks (P-1) zoning district

(32) Permits Required. Electric Electrified fences shall only be installed under a permit
issued by the Building Safety Department, and if an alarm is included, shall also have a
Burglar Alarm permit issued under Medford Municipal Code 8.605 through 8.695. Prior to
initially energizing an electrified fence, the property owner or owner’s agent shall contact
the Fire Department to ensure fire officials inspect the premise for compliance and the
location is added to the Fire Department’s electrified fence registration list.

Page 112



 

2  Draft Final  
  Updated 2020-05-05 
 
 

  
(43)  Electrification. The electric charge produced by the fence upon contact shall be non-
lethal, and shall not exceed the energizer characteristics set forth in the International 
Electro technical Commission (IEC) Standard No. 60335-2-76, 2002 2018 edition.  All 
electrical components shall bear the label of a testing agency recognized by the State of 
Oregon Department of Consumer and Business Services, Building Codes Division. The 
electrified fence shall be installed and used in accordance with the Oregon Electrical 
Specialty Code and Oregon Structural Specialty Code, the listing, and the manufacturer’s 
installation instructions.  

(43.1)  The energizer for electric electrified fences must shall be driven by a 
commercial storage battery or batteries not to exceed 12 volts DC. The storage 
battery(ies) may be charged either by a solar panel, or a commercial trickle charger, 
or a combination of both. AC current shall not be used to energize any electrified 
fence. 

(54)  Fence Details. Electrified fences shall be constructed in the following manner: 

(5.1) Maximum Height. Electrified fences shall not exceed 10 feet in height.  

(5.2) Perimeter Fence. No electrified fence shall be installed or used unless it is 
completely surrounded by a non-electrified perimeter fence in order to separate the 
electrified fence from the abutting property line and right-of-way. The non-
electrified perimeter fence shall be installed under the regulations and height 
limitations in Medford Municipal Code 10.731 through 10.735. The minimum height 
of the non-electrified perimeter fence shall be six feet. The electrified and non-
electrified perimeter fence shall be separated by no more than 10 inches.    

(5.3) Setbacks. Electrified fences shall not be located in the front yard setback, 
required landscaping, or bufferyard requirements as set forth in Chapter 10.  No 
electrified fence shall be installed within 24 inches of a property line.  

(5.4) Fence Standards in conjunction with a Bufferyard. When a bufferyard exists, 
the applicant shall provide photographs of the existing fence or wall and vegetation. 
The installation of the non-electrified perimeter fence and electrified fence shall be 
outside of the bufferyard and built in accordance with Section 5.2.   When a 
bufferyard does not exist, the non-electrified fence or wall shall be of solid 
construction (e.g. wood, concrete, masonry block) and the minimum height shall be 
eight feet.  

No electric fence shall be installed or used unless it is separated from the abutting 
property or right-of-way by a non-electric fence or wall.  When abutting a residential 
property, the non-electric fence or wall shall be of solid construction. 

(4.1)  The non-electric fence shall be installed under the regulations and height 
limitations in Medford Municipal Code 10.731 through 10.735. 

Page 113



 

3  Draft Final  
  Updated 2020-05-05 
 
 

(4.2)  The non-electric fence shall be a height equal to, or greater than the highest 
level of electrification, but in no case less than 6 feet in height.   Electric fences shall 
not exceed the height of the legally permitted non-electric surrounding 
fence.  Electric fences shall not be located in the front yard setback. 
(4.3)  A separation shall be maintained between the electric fence and a surrounding 
non-electric fence or wall, adequate to allow maintenance of landscaping, but no 
less than 12 inches, and no electric fence shall be installed within 24 inches of a 
property line. 
(4.4)  When an electric fence is installed within a required buffer yard as defined in 
Medford Municipal Code 10.790, the non-electric fence shall be shall be constructed 
of a material and design that is sight-obstructing, and compatible with adjacent 
uses, per the standards of that section. The installation of the electric fence shall not 
interfere with or cause the removal of the required buffer yard plantings. 

 
(65)  Warning Signs. Electric Electrified fences shall be clearly identified with warning signs 
in English and in Spanish that read:  "Warning-Electric Fence" or an equivalent, together 
with a pictorial warning, and include the international symbol for an electrical hazard at 
intervals of not to exceed forty thirty feet. The warning signs shall be mounted on both 
sides of the electrified fence.  The signs shall be reflective with a minimum two-inch letter 
height, minimum stroke of one-half inch and with a contrasting background.  
 
(76) Emergency Access. Fire Ddepartment access shall be provided in accordance with the 
Fire Code and the Oregon Structural Specialty Code. When a vehicle gate opens 
automatically, it shall open using a sensing device approved by the Fire Department. The 
vehicle gate shall provide a means for the Fire Department to egress through the gate. 
Power to the electrified fence, excluding gate opening controls, shall be deactivated upon 
automatic Fire Department access through the gate. In addition, an approved Knox key box 
or approved equivalent shall be provided at an exterior location for any keyed locks or 
keyed gates for immediate emergency access necessary for life-saving or fire-fighting 
purposes. An approved method to manually disconnect electrical power to all portions of 
the fence and gates, such as a “Knox Remote Shunt Control Station”, shall be provided at an 
exterior location. The method and location of both the key box and the electrical 
disconnect shall be approved by the Medford Fire Marshal Ffire Ccode Oofficial. 
 
(8) Hours of Operation. An electrified fence shall only be energized during the hours when 
the general public does not have legal access to the protected property, unless when used 
to control livestock.  
 
(9) Surveillance.  Electrified fences shall be part of a functioning security system and 
monitored 24 hours a day.   
 

Page 114



 

4  Draft Final  
  Updated 2020-05-05 
 
 

(107)  Compliance. Failure to maintain an electric electrified fence in conformance with the 
standards set forth in this section shall result in the fence being declared a public nuisance 
subject to abatement under Medford Municipal Code 5.530. 
 
[Added, Sec. 2, Ord. No. 2015-88, Sept. 3, 2015.] 

 

Chapter 10 Adjustments 

10.732 Fencing of Lots.   

(4) All fencing shall comply with Sections 9.560 (Fences and Walls) and 9.561 (Electrified 
Fences), Hazardous Fences Prohibited, of the City Code. 

  

10.839 Marijuana-Related Businesses 

(4) The hazardous fence and wall provisions in Sections 9.560 (Fences and Walls) and 9.561 
(Electrified Fences) apply. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 115



Friday 5/1/2020 11:39 a.m 
E-mail from Scott A. Clauson
Re: Electric Fences

Hi Carla, 

Thank for soliciting my feedback. I have been very interested in this project since the first time you 
mentioned it several months ago.  

Business owners, in particular, are very frustrated about the chronic theft that occurs at their sites 
regularly. We recommend good lighting, fencing, cameras, cars that get locked up and heavy duty locks 
on storage units. Despite these recommendations, thieves continue to break in and generally cause 
thousands of dollars’ worth of damage for mere pennies. Unfortunately, Southern Oregon is afflicted 
with rampant substance abuse and lack of jail space which fuels theft from businesses. So needless to 
say, I am very supportive of an additional measure that business owners can take to protect their 
property. 

I have a different perspective on 9.561 (2d) (2f). I believe the fences should be allowed. These 
commercial locations remain vulnerable next to residential areas. A recent example, from two weeks 
ago was the Medford School District yard that was getting hit almost nightly by thieves. This fenced area 
is adjacent to a residential area. This theft was very difficult to stop even with cameras and lighting, 
which resulted in thousands of dollars’ worth of tools being taken. We hid some police cameras and 
finally obtained some footage that lead to an arrest. This is just one example of how difficult it is for 
property owners to protect their valuables. This type of theft occurs nightly in Medford. 

I would argue that they should be allowed on (2g) as well, but I would like to get your input. I am sure 
there is good reason for prohibiting this.  

I hope that helps. I would gladly come to the next meeting and offer my insight if needed. 

Scott Clauson | Chief of Police  
City of Medford, Oregon | Police Department 
219 S. Ivy Street, Medford, Oregon 97501 
Ph: 541.774.2209 | Fax: 541.774.2570 
Website | Facebook | Twitter 

Page 116

http://www.ci.medford.or.us/
https://www.facebook.com/CityofMedford/
https://twitter.com/cityofmedford?lang=en


From: Robert Jr. Shand [mailto:robertcshand@gmail.com] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 29, 2020 7:28 AM 
To: Kay E. Brooks <Kay.Brooks@cityofmedford.org>; Mayor and Council <mayor@cityofmedford.org> 
Subject: Thank you for your representation and a suggestion on electric fences 

Hi Kay, Thank you for sharing my concerns re: the MURA/Maslow camp ground on Central 
Ave. at this past council meeting. The single agenda item for tomorrows 4/30/2020 study session 
with regards to electric fencing and if and how it may be incorporated in areas of 
commercial/residential proximities. Bartlett St. Between the Starr shop and The Bartlett St. Apts. 
would be a good example. Initially there is/was a chain link fence. Then, an electrified fence was 
placed behind it complete with warning signs. The aesthetics were that of Stalag 13. the view 
was improved some what by the installation of privacy slats. I personally would take it a step 
further and add some living greenery. My suggestion would be: At locations of 
commercial/residential or downtown ,that there would be an aesthetically appropriate fence or 
barrier in front of an electrified fence thus softening the appearance of the electric/security fence. 
This would also help with the safety issue of accidental contact by children, pets or others. Thank 
you again for your representation of Ward 3. Kindest regards. Bob Shand 

Page 117

mailto:robertcshand@gmail.com
mailto:Kay.Brooks@cityofmedford.org
mailto:mayor@cityofmedford.org


 
  

April 27, 2020 
12:00 P.M.  
Lausmann Annex, Room 151 
200 S. Ivy Street, Medford, Oregon 

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission was called to order in a Zoom webinar at 12:00 
noon in Medford, Oregon on the above date with the following members and staff in attendance:  

Commissioners Present Staff Present 
Mark McKechnie, Chair 
Joe Foley, Vice Chair 
David Culbertson 
David Jordan 
Bill Mansfield 
David McFadden 
Jared Pulver 

Kelly Evans, Assistant Planning Director 
Carla Paladino, Principal Planner 
Eric Mitton, Deputy City Attorney 

Commissioners Absent Guests 
E.J. McManus, Excused Absence Greg Lemhouse, United Strategies 
Jeff Thomas, Unexcused Absence Michael Pate – Amarok Ultimate Perimeter Security 

20. Subject

20.1 DCA-19-010 Electric Fence Amendment 

Carla Paladino, Principal Planner reported that staff is seeking direction from the Planning Commission 
on draft language for electrified fences and consideration for a preferred option where electric fences 
are permitted and prohibited.   

Amarok (formerly Electric Guard Dog) initiated the amendment seeking code changes in expanding the 
zoning districts where electric fences are permitted.  The company has been approached by local 
Medford businesses to install this type of fencing and is finding limitations based on existing code 
provisions. 

The current provisions permit electric fences around outdoor storage areas, including vehicle storage 
areas in C-H (Heavy Commercial), I-L (Light Industrial), I-G (General Industrial, and I-H (Heavy Industrial) 
or where needed to control livestock.  

The proposal seeks to modify the title of Section 9.561 from Electric Fences to Electrified Fences.  A 
definition for electrified fence has been added.  A person seeking to install an electrified fence must 
receive a permit from the Building Safety Department, and if an alarm is included, then a burglar alarm 

PLANNING COMMISSION  
STUDY SESSION MINUTES 

Page 118



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 27, 2020 

Page 2 of 6 

permit is needed.  Prior to turning on the fence, applicant or agent must contact the Fire Department 
for an inspection and add the location to the Fire Department to the electrified fence registration list. 
The electric charge produced by the fence shall be non-lethal and comply with the IEC (International 
Electro technical Commission) standard, 2018 edition.  The fence shall be installed and used in 
accordance with the Oregon Electrical Specialty Code and the Oregon Structural Specialty Code and 
the manufacturer’s installation instructions.  Energizer for the fence shall be through use of 
commercial storage batteries, the use of an AC current is not permitted.  

Warning signs will be in English and Spanish with international symbol for electrical hazard.  Signs to 
be placed at intervals or 30 feet or less on both sides of the fence.  Signs shall meet reflectivity 
standards, letter height with a contrasting background.  Fire Department access to the premises shall 
be in accordance with Fire Code OSSC requirements.  Automatic gates must open using a sending 
device approved by the Fire Department.  Power to the electrified fence excluding the gate opening 
controls shall be deactivated upon automatic Fire Department access. Knox key box or equivalent shall 
be provided at an exterior location for any keyed locks or gates for immediate emergency access.  The 
fence shall only be electrified during hours when the general public does not have access.  The fence 
shall be part of a functioning security system and monitored 24 hours per day. 

The maximum height of the electric fence is 10 feet.  Non-electrified fence required is a minimum of 6 
feet surrounding outer perimeter.  Fences must comply with setbacks, landscape yards and buffer 
yard requirements. 

By adding the SIC codes and Zones within the text, it clearly identifies for the citizen and staff reviewing 
the regulations what the use is and where it is permitted based on Chapter 10 guidance. Staff suggests 
adding five new category of uses which expands the allowance for electrified fences into additional 
Commercial zoning districts. 

Options #1 and #2 for where electrified fences are permitted are the same from the existing allowance 
(Outdoor Storage Areas and Control of Livestock).  The proposed additions are heavy construction 
equipment rental and leasing; auto dismantlers and metal recyclers; trucking establishments, towing 
companies; and auto repair, services and garages.   

Option #1 prohibits electrified fences in the Central Business overlay district; Liberty Park Plan area, 
Southeast Plan area; when adjacent to residential in Commercial zones; Neighborhood Commercial 
and Service Commercial Professional; SFR and MFR zones or when adjacent; and Public Parks zone or 
when adjacent. Option #2 prohibits electrified fences in the Central Business overlay district.   

Option #3 is the same list as one and two but proposes to add the allowance for electrified fences to 
the Community Commercial Zoning district. 

Page 119



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 27, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 3 of 6  
 

Option #3 prohibited areas are the Central Business overlay district; Liberty Park Plan area; Southeast 
Plan area; Neighborhood Commercial and Service Commercial Professional; SFR and MFR zones; and 
Public Parks zone. 
 
Commissioner Mansfield asked, is the industry requesting Option #3 and is staff recommending 
Option #1? Ms. Paladino replied, that is correct.  

 
Commissioner Mansfield asked, why does staff object to Option #3?  Ms. Paladino reported that 
the issue with Option #3 for permitting is that Outdoor storage does not permit that use in 
Community Commercial.  Staff feels that if an electrified fence is adjacent to a commercial or 
residential area it is not compatible. 
 
Vice Chair Foley asked, would a solid wall come into play if the Commission chose Option #3?  Ms. 
Paladino responded that it would. 
 
Commissioner Pulver asked, are the proposed allowed uses not permitted in Community 
Commercial?   Ms. Paladino replied just in Option #3.   
 
Commissioner Pulver asked, if the uses were permitted in Community Commercial but not 
allowing electric fences, would it create an inconsistency in the Code?  Ms. Paladino stated that it 
would. It would need to be called out specifically. 
 
Commissioner Mansfield commented that he does not think safety is an issue.  The issue is 
choosing either Option #1 or Option #3.  Ms. Paladino responded that the next step would be to 
hear from the Commissioners on the entire draft.   
 
Ms. Paladino reported that the draft will be presented to the City Council at their Thursday, April 
30, 2020 study session.  Presented to the Planning Commission at their May 14, 2020 public 
hearing and City Council public hearing on June 18, 2020.  What Ms. Paladino hears today from the 
Planning Commission will be passed on to the City Council.   
 
Vice Chair Foley asked, is the Central Business overlay district included or excluded in Option #3?  
Ms. Paladino responded that in the Central Business overlay an electric fence is prohibited. 
 
Commissioner Mansfield asked, with Option #3 would it be difficult to modify Chapter 9 in order 
to avoid the awkwardness she described?  Ms. Paladino stated staff would add language talking 
about electric fences being permitted in the Community Commercial zone.  
 
Chair McKechnie asked, are electric fence details in the code or is it new language.  Ms. Paladino 
replied that it is modified language.  The difference is to expand the uses.  
 

Page 120



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 27, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 4 of 6  
 

Chair McKechnie asked, has staff heard from the Police Department or anyone else that need 
electric fences that were being overrun with theft and mayhem on properties that needs 
consideration of this option or is it being driven by the  applicant?  Ms. Paladino responded it is at 
the applicant’s request.  She has not heard from the Police Department.  Fire has a concern to 
update the language so they can access appropriately. 
 
Chair McKechnie asked, does staff think the language in the code are sufficient for electric fences?  
Ms. Paladino stated that the new changes are appropriate.  It is benefiting Building and Fire. 
 
Commissioner Pulver having electric fences in some areas may discourage crime.  He does not 
think residential uses in commercial areas needs to be an exclusion.  He could see electric fences 
along the Greenway.  Ms. Paladino responded that Commissioner Pulver’s comments regarding 
electric fences providing a security feature and helping to deter unwanted activity is what the 
applicant would say.  From an aesthetics and livability standpoint staff is trying to control where 
electrified fences are going and for specific uses. 
 
Chair McKechnie thought staff’s proposal for the electric fences were only in Heavy Commercial 
and the three industrial zones.  Ms. Paladino responded that staff’s proposal is Option #1 that 
electrified fences are permitted in the existing allowance (Outdoor Storage Areas and Control of 
Livestock).  The proposed additions are heavy construction equipment rental and leasing; auto 
dismantlers and metal recyclers; trucking establishments, towing companies; and auto repair, 
services and garages.  This expands into some of the commercial zones.  In conjunction staff is 
proposing to prohibit them in certain areas and adjacent to certain zones so that the limitation is 
more.   
 
Chair McKechnie asked, can it be done in such a way that electrified fences are not permitted in 
Community Commercial zones?  Ms. Paladino replied that uses would have to be removed or 
specifically state in the code it is not permitted in that zone.  That is Chair McKechnie’s preference.   
 
Commissioner McFadden commented that there is an auto repair shop on the corner of Jackson 
and North Central that goes to North Bartlett Street east.  He is not sure of the zoning.  Ms. 
Paladino believes it is Community Commercial.  Commissioner McFadden continued that they 
currently have an electric fence.  He is concerned with the visibility of those types of uses in some 
areas and Community Commercial might be one of them.  Ms. Paladino responded that in that 
case it would be difficult because there used to be an auto dealership then converted to auto 
repair.  The requirements for the buffer yards do not apply when changing the use.   
 
Commissioner McFadden asked, could the fence visibility be dealt with on a new application? Ms. 
Paladino replied yes.  She thinks it is noted in the commercial standards that outside storage 
requires site obscuring fence.  Ms. Evans can correct her if she is wrong.  Kelly Evans, Assistant 
Planning Director stated that it varies by zone.  In Industrial zones items can be outside behind a 

Page 121



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 27, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 5 of 6  
 

site obscuring fence.  In commercial zones all uses except those customarily conducted outdoors 
must be located within an enclosed building.  Outdoor storage is limited in commercial zones.  The 
code does not allow slates for screening purposes.  It is an interesting balance being able to see in.  
If one can see into an area where things are desirable does it make sense to put an electrified 
fence behind a view obscuring fence?  It is an interesting question especially in a commercial zone.   
 
Commissioner Mansfield favors Option #3.  He does not share the belief that the site of the fence 
is that objectionable.   
 
Chair McKechnie thinks electrified fences should not be allowed in community commercial zones 
because the lots can be particularly small.  Whereas, in heavy commercial and industrial zones 
they have a larger minimum size requirement.  The chance of having an electrified fence up tight 
to something else is more likely to occur in a community commercial zone.  If it is not too much 
trouble for staff to have it in the four heavy industrial and commercial zones and not in the 
community commercial zone.  Personally he does not see the need for electrified fences. 
 
Commissioner Pulver asked, would there be an option to say no to the changes or recommend an 
option or an option with changes when this comes before the Planning Commission public 
hearing?  Ms. Paladino replied absolutely.  These are just three options staff came up with.   
 
Vice Chair Foley agrees with Commissioner Mansfield.  He is leaning towards Option #3.   
 
Commissioner McFadden agrees with Chair McKechnie however, in terms of the visibility of the 
fence he agrees with Commissioner Mansfield.  If there more of a need he could go with Option 
#3 but that is not a big call for electrified fences.   
 
Commissioner Pulver would choose Option #2 with modifications and not allow in community 
commercial zones.         
 
Commissioner Jordan asked, is the additional industries of heavy construction equipment, auto 
dismantlers and others coming from the industry?  Ms. Paladino stated that came from looking at 
the applicant’s website and where they cater most. 
 
Commissioner Culbertson is leaning towards Option #3.  He is not entirely convinced the 
community commercial zoning is that problematic about being permitted.  He would like to see 
visuals of what the fences look like going forward.   
 
Greg Lemhouse, United Strategies reported that in his experience in law enforcement property 
crimes are crimes of convenience.  Harder targets with security systems deter crime.  If there is an 
area secured and deters crime that keeps the criminal element from coming in that area which 
enhances livability in that area.  They can provide a great deal of information on what the product 

Page 122



Planning Commission Minutes 
April 27, 2020 
 

 
 

Page 6 of 6  
 

looks like.  This is a security system that is inside and existing fence line.  Most people do not see 
them when driving by.   
 
Michael Pate, Amarok (formerly Electric Guard Dog) stated that they do not care about the 
outdoor storage zoning designation.  United Rentals contacted Amarok to install the electric guard 
dog at their property.  United Rentals is allowed in the C-C zones.  They only care about the C-C 
zone and whatever is allowed in that zone at this time, not expanding the allow-ability of types of 
businesses within that zone.  They would like to see these types of businesses use the devices but 
that is doing an exclusion of some groups that may like to secure their property. They just want to 
include one more zone.  The devices are difficult to see. Solid walls make it hard to see someone 
hiding behind.  It is better, as a security issue, that there is an open space that can be visually 
inspected.  They are requesting Option #3.  They can supply a list of properties that have the 
device that the Commissioners can drive by and see.  
 
Ms. Paladino summarized that she heard Option #3 from Commissioner Mansfield, Vice Chair 
Foley and potentially from Commissioner Culbertson.  Option #2 with modifications to the C-C 
zone from Commissioner Pulver.  Chair McKechnie is no in favor of anything in the C-C zone.  She 
did not get an option from Commissioner McFadden and Commissioner Jordan.   
 
Commissioner Jordan has interest in Option #3. 
 
Commissioner McFadden does not have a preference at this time.   
 
Ms. Paladino reported that City Council will hear this Thursday.  Does the Planning Commission 
want to hear back from what the City Council decided or have staff put everything together and 
present it at the Planning Commissions public hearing on May 14, 2020?  Chair McKechnie 
responded that he would be interested but Ms. Paladino could send it in an email.           
 
 
100. Adjournment 
101. The meeting was adjourned at approximately 12:56 p.m.   

 
 

Submitted by: 
 
_____________________________________________    
Terri L. Richards       
Recording Secretary 

Page 123


	Cover Sheet (page 1)
	Agenda (pages 2-3)
	20.1 LDS-20-046 Final Order (page 4)
	Planning Commision Report (pages 5-12)
	Exhibit A-1 - Conditions of Approval (page 13)
	Vicinity Map (page 14)
	20.2 LDS-20-050 Final Order (page 15)
	E-20-051 Final Order (page 16)

	30.1 Minutes from April 23, 2020 Planning Commission meeting (pages 17-31)
	50.1 PUD-20-032 LDS-20-100 - Staf Report - Continuance Request (pages 32-33)
	Exhibit A - Continuance request (page 34)
	Vicinity Map (page 35)

	50.2 LDS-20-025 
	Staff Report (pages 36-46)
	Exhibit A - Conditions of Approval (page 47)
	Exhibit B - Tentative Plat (pages 48-49)
	Exhibit C - Conceptual Grading & Drainage Plan (page 50)
	Exhibit D - Conceptual Road Sections (page 51)
	Exhibit E - Conceputal Utility Plan (page 52)
	Exhibit F - Applicant's Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law (pages 53-60) 
	Exhibit G - Applicant's Slope Anaylis (page 61)
	Exhibit H - Public Works Staff Report (pages 62-73)
	Exhibit I - Medford Water Commission Memo and associated map (pages 74-76)
	Exhibit J - Medford Fire Department Report (pages 77-81)
	Exhibit K - Jackson County Roads Comments (page 82-83)
	Exhibit L - City Address Technician Memo (page 84)
	Exhibit M - Parks Department Memo (page 85)
	Exhibit N - Applicant's Geotechnical Report (pages 86-97)
	Exhibit O - Applicant's Hydrology and Grading Report (pages 98-99)
	Exhibit P - Constraints Analysis Form signed by City Engineer (page 100)
	Exhibit Q - Applicant's letter (pages 101-102)
	Vicinity Map
	Recommended Action (page 45)

	50.3 DCA-19-010
	Staff Report (pages 104-111)
	Exhibit A - Proposed Amendment (pages 112-115)
	Exhibit B - Email from Police Chief Clauson (page 116)
	Exhibit C - Email from Bob Shand to Kay Brooks (page 117)
	Exhibit D - Planning Commission Study Session minutes from  April 27, 2020 (pages 118-123)
	Recommended Action (page 111)




